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Lifestyle China Group Limited (“Lifestyle China” or together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is an established operator of department stores
based in the PRC. The Group operates two “lifestyle” department stores
under the brand of Jiuguang in Shanghai and Suzhou respectively, with
middle to upper-end market positioning in the PRC. Shanghai Jiuguang
and Suzhou Jiuguang, which have differentiated themselves with
appealing product and brand portfolios and top-notch one-stop shopping
experiences, are the most sought-after shopping destinations in the
region. The Group’s department stores offer a wide variety of goods
catered to customer needs and a pleasant shopping environment. The
Group also operates supermarkets in the PRC and restaurants in the PRC
and Hong Kong. In an effort to diversify its operations, the Group owns a
strategic stake in Beiren Group, a leading retailer group based in
Shijiazhuang, Hebei Province in the PRC.

In view of the large retail market and strong spending power of consumers
in Shanghai, Lifestyle China is developing a new commercial complex in
Daning, Shanghai (“the Daning Project”), which will house the Group’s
second Jiuguang department store in Shanghai. The Daning Project is
targeted to be completed in 2019 and upon commencement of operation,
the Daning Project is expected to boost the Group’s market presence and
further enhance its brand equity in Shanghai.
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Corporate Information (continued) &% (&)

Principal Bankers
Agricultural Bank of China
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Compliance Adviser
KGI Capital Asia Limited
Solicitor

Sit, Fung, Kwong & Shum

Hong Kong Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Cayman Islands Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House, 3rd Floor

24 Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586
Grand Cayman, KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Share Information

Place of listing: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock code: 2136

Board lot: 500 shares

Financial year end: 31 December

Closing share price at 31 December 2017: HK$2.41

Market capitalization at 31 December 2017: HK$3,862 million

Website

www.lifestylechina.com.hk
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Lau Luen Hung, Thomas 2%
Chairman /&

Global economic growth picked up in 2017 with China’s economy shifted
up a gear with a 6.9% growth last year, bucking the trend of deceleration
during the period from 2010 to 2016. This helped to buoy up consumer
confidence and thus maintain the momentum of steady growth in the
country’s retail sales.

Nevertheless, the retail market remained intensely competitive and
challenging, not least because of e-commerce’s snowballing popularity
and the higher requirements of the burgeoning middle class. To adapt to
the situation, Lifestyle China Group Limited (“Lifestyle China” or the
"Company”, which together with its subsidiaries, is referred to as the
"Group”) had enhanced its agility in making decisions and in responding
to changes in the market by becoming a separately listed company
through a spin-off from Lifestyle International Holdings Limited on 15 July
2016. It had also been pressing on with a series business measures,
including rationalization of its retail store network, enhancement of both
its marketing efforts and tenant mix, and enrichment of the product
assortment. The Company had been endeavoring to enhance the
shopping experience so as to boost footfall at its department stores and
to build up a loyal client base.

As a result, Lifestyle China was well-positioned to harness the tailwind of
China’s retail market in 2017. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group recorded a 8.0% increase in turnover to RMB1,222.8 million and a
3.0% decrease in net profit to RMB269.6 million. The increases in turnover
was mainly attributable to the growth in sales revenues from the Group's
major operations, the department stores Shanghai Jiuguang and Suzhou
Jiuguang, however due to the decrease in share of profit of the Beiren
Group, a well-established Shijiazhuang-based retailer in which the Group
has a strategic equity interest, together with exchange losses and some
one-off expenses incurred during the year, the Group recorded the
decrease in net profit. Earnings per share for 2017 decreased 3.0% to
RMBO0.168. The Board has resolved to not to declare any dividend for the
year.

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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Chairman’s Statement (continued) EE#HE (M)

The Group's department store business rationalized its store network by
consolidating its core, profitable operations of Shanghai Jiuguang and
Suzhou Jiuguang and closing its loss-making ones in northeastern China.
Both Shanghai Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang gave their one-stop service
full play under the Jiuguang brand, enriched their product assortment and
stepped up their marketing efforts. As a way to reinforce its business
presence in Shanghai, the Group is constructing a retail and commercial
complex in Daning, Jingan District of the city. The project is scheduled to
be completed in 2019 and will comprise a large retail complex, which will
be the Group's second Jiuguang store in Shanghai, and office buildings.

The Group's strategic investment in Beiren Group continued to contribute
significantly to the profit attributable to the owners of the Company for
2017 as Beiren Group put in a steady business performance.

While the world economy seems to be gaining momentum, rising
protectionism and financial vulnerabilities remain overhang. China’s
economic growth may slow down in 2018 as drags on economic activity
from slower credit growth and the cooling property market are likely to
intensify this year.

Looking ahead, the Group expects the retail market to become
increasingly competitive, especially since e-commerce has developed into
a significant form of retailing. Meanwhile, the higher requirements of the
growing middle class as a consumer group also mean challenges and
opportunities. To gear up for the situation, Lifestyle China will forge ahead
with its business measures, seeking to enhance consumers’ shopping
experience with well-trained staff, enriched product assortment and
increased marketing and promotional efforts at its department stores.
With these measures in place, the Group can accentuate its advantage as
a brick-and-mortar retailer over e-commerce operators by offering
immediate experience of both a lively shopping environment and a wide
and varied selection of goods. This is also how the Group will try to
expand the base of its VIP customers and thus generate better returns to
shareholders.

As always, the Group remains open-minded to strategic opportunities that
have good potential in bringing sustainable returns and would enhance
shareholder value.

On behalf of the board, | would like to express my gratitude to all the
members of our management team and the staff for their diligence and
contributions to the Group's development. | would also like to thank our
customers, business partners and shareholders for their unswerving
support and enduring trust.

Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

5 March 2018
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Market Overview

China’s gross domestic product grew by 6.9% in 2017, reversing the
decelerating trend during the period from 2010 to 2016. The revived
economic growth momentum came as the government’s supply-side
reforms began to yield results and that the country’s foreign trade saw a
reversion of the declines in the previous two years. This had helped
building up the consumer confidence which led to a steady pace of
growth in the country’s retail sales. In 2017, China's retail sales increased
by 10.2% to about RMB36.62 trillion. The department stores sector
recorded a 6.7% growth in retail sales while the supermarkets sector
recorded a 7.3% rise in retail sales.

Lifestyle China is well-positioned to capitalize on the uptrends in the retail
sector as it has been forging ahead with a series of effective business and
management measures since its spin-off from Lifestyle International
Holdings Limited and separately listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 15 July 2016. Apart from the status as
a separately listed company that has made Lifestyle China more agile in
making decisions and in adapting itself to changes in the market, the
Company also stepped up its marketing and promotional efforts,
enhanced the tenant mix and enriched the product assortment with the
aim of increasing both the customer loyalty and footfall at its department
stores.

Financial Review 2017

During the financial year under review, the Group rationalized its retail
network by enhancing the department stores that performed well. Its core
department store operations, namely Shanghai Jiuguang and Suzhou
Jiuguang, recorded robust growth in sales revenues and in aggregate
accounted for 92% of the Group's turnover. Its other two department
stores, Dalian Jiuguang and Shenyang Jiuguang, which were closed
previously, remained closed during the year. The Group's strategic
investment in Beiren Group, a leading retailer in Shijiazhuang, Hebei
Province, continued to deliver stable results and contribute substantially
to the profit attributable to owners of the Company in 2017.

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) ZEEh & 24 (&)

Turnover and Sales Proceeds

For the year ended 31 December 2017, turnover of the Group increased
by 8.0% to RMB1,222.8 million, meeting the management'’s expectations.
The growth came as the Group’s two major department stores, Shanghai
Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang, were able to capitalize on the recovery of
China’s economic growth and retail sales. The two department stores
gave their one-stop service full play under the Jiuguang brand and
continued during the year to enhance their product assortment and
marketing strategies. In particular, the strong sales of cosmetics and
apparels contributed to the turnover growth. Net sales proceeds
increased by 7.5% to RMB3,321.5 million.

Gross Profit and Concessionaire Rates

Gross profit increased by 5.4% to RMB865.4 million in 2017 and the gross
profit margin as a percentage of net sales proceeds was approximately
26.1%, compared with 26.6% in 2016. Gross profit margin as a percentage
of turnover decreased to 70.8% from 72.5% due to higher growth in direct
sales. Average concessionaire rate was stable at 22.3%, similar to that in
2016. The Group continued with its effective business strategies and the
enhancement of its stores’ brand and product assortments to boost the
traffic footfall.

Net Profit Attributable to Shareholders

Notwithstanding there was a growth in sales and turnover, net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year 2017 decreased by
3.0% to RMB269.6 million. The unexpected decrease in profit was mainly
attributable to an exchange loss of RMB36.6 million recorded this year on
the Group's bank balance denominated in United State dollar and Hong
Kong dollar amid appreciation of the RMB, whereas it was an exchange
gain of RMB26.0 million in 2016 as the RMB was much weaker then.

Selling and Distribution Costs

Aggregate selling and distribution costs of the Group increased by 3.3%
to RMB576.6 million from RMB558.0 million recorded in the year 2016,
mainly as a result of the Group’s move to step up its marketing and
promotional efforts in view of the highly competitive operating
environment. The Group's aggregate selling and distribution expenses as
a percentage of total sales proceeds remained relatively stable at
approximately 17.4%.

Administrative Expenses

The Group's general administrative expenses decreased by 13.9% to
approximately RMB99.6 million, as compared to RMB115.6 million
recorded in the year 2016. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
decrease in consultancy fee as a subsidiary of Lifestyle International
Holdings Limited has ceased charging the Group consultancy fee since
the spin-off and separate listing of the Company’s shares last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) ZEE B R 247 (&)

Staff Costs

Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments) increased mildly to
approximately RMB169.3 million during the year under review. While the
Group's annual salary adjustment was largely in line with the market trend,
the total number of full-time staff of the Group has decreased to 1,371 as
compared to 1,379 in the year 2016.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

Other income, gains and losses comprise mainly management fee, credit
card charges and other miscellaneous incomes received from the
counters/tenants, other sundry incomes and exchange gain/loss. The
decrease for the review period was mainly attributable to an exchange
loss of RMB36.6 million being recorded as the Group's bank balances
denominated in United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars depreciated
against the RMB during the year.

Interest and Investment Income

The amount mainly represents interest received from the Group's bank
deposits, unrealized fair value gain and investment income on the Group's
financial investment.

Finance Costs

The Group's finance cost consisted mainly of interests incurred on bank
loans. The aggregate amount of interests incurred, before capitalization,
was approximately RMB54.0 million (2016: RMB115.1 million) for the year
under review. The decrease comparing to the previous year was mainly
due to capitalization of the borrowings previously from fellow subsidiaries
as part of the re-organisation leading to the spin-off and separate listing
of the Company in July 2016. As such, there has been no more borrowings
from fellow subsidiaries since then and hence a significant drop in interest
incurred during the year. The finance costs charged to the profit and loss
decreased to approximately RMB3.3 million from RMB11.6 million last
year as the Group also paid down during the year certain bank loans
which corresponding interest did not qualify for capitalisation purpose in
the past.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's EBITDA before share of results of associates and a joint
venture, fair value change of financial investments, exchange gains or
losses and other non-recurring items for the year increased from
RMB376.3 million in the year 2016 to approximately RMB427.5 million,
mainly due to an increase in business turnover and operating cashflows.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s net debt (defined as cash and bank
balances less total bank borrowings, amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiaries and amount due to a joint venture) amounted
to approximately RMB229.1 million, while it was net cash of RMB766.9
million in the previous year. The net debt position was a result of the
Group's structured deposits of RMB785.5 million are being classified as
investments rather than cash.

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) ZEEh & 24 (&)

The Group's bank balances and cash amounted to about RMB1,280.8
million (31 December 2016: RMB1,990.2 million) as at 31 December 2017,
of which RMB329.0 million, denominated in Hong Kong dollars, was kept
in Hong Kong, with the balance being kept in mainland China of which
approximately 83.8% was denominated in Renminbi and the remaining
16.2% was in United States dollars. The decrease in cash at banks as
compared to last year was the Group's net purchase during the year of
structured deposits of approximately RMB730.5 million which is included
as financial investments. As at 31 December 2017, the Group's secured
bank loans amounted to approximately RMB1,375.2 million (31 December
2016: RMB1,085.1 million), bearing interest calculated with reference to
benchmark rates of the People’s Bank of China. As at 31 December 2017,
the Group had aggregate un-utilised banking facilities in the amount
equivalent to approximately RMB1,074.8 million (31 December 2016:
RMB1,501.5 million). The Group’s debt to equity ratio (defined as bank
borrowings divided by equity attributable to the owners of the Company)
was 15.2% (31 December 2016: 12.3%) as at the year end.

Foreign Exchange Management

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries operating in
the PRC is Renminbi, in which most of the Group’s transactions are
denominated. As described under the “Liquidity and Financial Resources”
section above, certain of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are
denominated in foreign currencies (Hong Kong dollar and United States
dollar) other than Renminbi and is subject to foreign currency changes
depending on the strengthen of the RMB. Given the fact that majority of
the Group's revenue and expenses as well as borrowings and capital
expenditures are denominated in Renminbi and that the Hong Kong
dollar cash balance kept in Hong Kong is purposely for settling expenses
incurred outside of mainland China, the Group currently does not require
a comprehensive foreign currency hedging policy. Management will
however monitor the Group's foreign currency exposure and will consider
taking appropriate measures to mitigate any potential significant foreign
currency risks should the need arises.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2017, certain of the Group's property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payment in the PRC with carrying values of
approximately RMB2,288.0 million (2016: RMB4,665.0 million) have been
pledged to secure loan facilities amounting to approximately RMB2,450.0
million (2016: RMB2,586.6 million).
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Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2017.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals
There were no material acquisitions and disposals during the year.

Review of Operations

The divergent trend of the regional retail markets in China continued
during the year and while some economically vibrant cities enjoyed
recovery in retail sales during the year, some other cities were still mired
in sluggish markets. Moreover, the e-commerce continued during the year
to gathering steam, exerting ever greater influence on the country’s retail
consumption. The Group took measures by increasing its marketing and
promotional efforts through digital mean with an aim to adapt to the fast
changing operating environment.

Shanghai Jiuguang

After the revamp of Shanghai Jiuguang, it was well-positioned to
capitalize on the recovery in China’s retail consumption. The department
store recorded a 7.5% growth in sales revenue in 2017, with sales of
clothing, fashion and apparel and food items growing particularly strongly.
The store's renovation was part of the Group's business measures to cope
with the changes to the operating environment, including increasing
competition from e-commerce and the change in requirements from the
growing middle class and the younger generation of consumers. In
addition to the store’s enhanced layout, Shanghai Jiuguang also enriched
its product assortment, increased its efforts to adopt the hybrid model of
“merchandise direct sales and concessionaires’ sales” and stepped up
marketing and promotional efforts with the aim of enhancing the
shopping experience. With the help of the department stores’ varied
marketing and promotional activities, sales for the New Year's Eve
recorded new high in daily sales revenue on 31 December 2017. The
continued endeavours paid off as they boosted the average daily footfall
to around 50,900 visitors. Average ticket size increased 4.4% to RMB403,
while the stay-buy ratio remained stable at 39.7%. The average
concessionaire rate collected by the store remained stable at around
23.7% (2016: 23.9%).

Suzhou Jiuguang

A department store that aims to meet the needs of a burgeoning middle
class in a second-tier city such as Suzhou, Suzhou Jiuguang also pressed
on during the year with the Group’s business measures to fully capitalize
on the recovery in China’s retail sector. In 2017, the department store
recorded a 12.9% growth in sales revenue. In particular, sales of clothing,
cosmetics and accessories were particularly strong, rising by 14.8%. On
the back of its enhanced marketing and promotional efforts, the store’s
average daily footfall edged up 1.2% to around 22,800 visitors and the
average ticket size increased by 8.6% to RMB400. Suzhou Jiuguang took
the online-to-offline initiatives on a trial basis which did stoke up
consumers’ enthusiasm for spending and achieved record high daily sales
revenue on the Singles’ Day. Meanwhile, the stay-buy ratio rose by 1.5
percentage points to 39.2% whereas the average concessionaire rate
collected by the store was 19.3%, compared with the 19.4% in the year
2016.
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Dalian Jiuguang

Dalian Jiuguang ceased operation at the end of 2016 amid a persistently
sluggish retail market. The Group was still collecting rents from a few
retailers operating on the upper floors of the property on leasing
arrangements during 2017. The Group is considering making changes to
use of the property, with an aim to increasing its efficiency and returns.

Standalone Freshmart Operation

Freshmart, which sells high-quality food and confectionary products as a
standalone operation of the Group in Changning, Shanghai, continued to
face increasing competition in the neighboring area in the year under
review, with sales revenue remained relatively stable.

Interest in Associates

Beiren Group, a well-established Shijiazhuang-based retailer in which the
Group has a strategic equity interest, achieved single digit growth in sales
revenue in 2017, with the gross profit margin remained stable for 2017.
Profit (after share of non-controlling interests) attributable to the Group
decreased 8.3% to RMB172.8 million in 2017 which was mainly caused by
an impairment provision made against an account receivable which is non
trade in nature. The net share of profit from this investment accounted for
64.1% of the Group's profit attributable to owners of the Company.

Restaurant Business

Aggregate sales revenue of the Group's restaurant business remained
stable at approximately RMB74.2 million in 2017. The combined sales
revenues of the Wa San Mai restaurants at the Shanghai Jiuguang and
Suzhou Jiuguang decreased by 8.6% while sales revenue of the restaurant
in Hong Kong increased 1.4%.

Business Expansion

Progress was made in terms of the construction works of the Group’s retail
and commercial complex in Daning, Jingan District, Shanghai. Scheduled
to be completed in 2019, the project comprises a large retail complex,
which will house the Group's second Jiuguang store in Shanghai, and two
office blocks. The commercial complex is expected to boost the Group's
market presence and further enhance its brand equity in Shanghai.
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Outlook and Plan

While steady economic growth in China and resilient external demand are
expected to support consumer confidence and spending in 2018,
uncertainties over rising trade protectionism and volatility in the financial
market could hinder the growth of the retail market.

Under a seasoned management which is alert to changes in the retail
environment, Shanghai Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang will remain the
drivers of the Group’s business growth in the meantime. The two
department stores will build on their past achievements and maintaining
their growth momentum. To cope with the increasingly competitive retail
environment, the Group will continue to pursue its business measures,
seeking to enhance consumers’ shopping experience with better value-
added services, enriched product assortment and enhanced marketing
and promotional efforts at the department stores.

To gear up for the competition, which has been intensified by the growing
e-commerce as well as new supply of retailing space, the Group will
strengthen its ties with the concessionaires, develop or offer high-quality
and attractive merchandise and enhance the mix of tenants who are
owners of well-known or popular brands. We will continue to provide
comprehensive value-added services of high standards for customers and
to better meet the needs and cater to the tastes and preferences of the
local customers. All these measures can accentuate the brick-and-mortar
retail venue’s advantage over e-commerce operators as the physical
stores can offer immediate experience of both a lively shopping
environment and a wide and varied selection of goods. This is also how
the Group will try to expand its VIP customer base in order to generate
more sales revenue and thus better returns to shareholders.

The Group remains open to new investment opportunities which would

facilitate the long-term sustainable growth of the Group with an aim to
generating better returns for shareholders in the longer run.

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2017

R E

BER =2 \FFEEERSRERNERYT
PRIBBEELREE  HERBRELRHRER
SETBRERDEROTANRELARTE
LEEEE

EHELRYENEEERAMITEMENEE -
EBARRERMARMAREEMEREROT N -
MABEERBERENKR  BRHERIE- R
ENZEREARINNET  AEEBEEHET
EERE FRELERE ZENERAAUR
MABEEEHNEENE  BARTHEBENE
YRR -

AT s Y4 Y D I 7 A T B R DA S R TR
TEEEMESMBNES - AEE S IR ESFF
EHEMNAE - FHESIEHARSI NINEER®S I
HEBRAANARZTRLAREOEFAS - REETT
BEERBTREEEELARE 2N B EHE
BEOEL mURREH - WERROITREERET
EERETHBEEREB 2L RERTEERL
MERBROBYRELEASEAREENR
B ARETEHELBNBEALESEREH K
MR EERA - UBRARRFMEEN LR -

REBE N REREBRPAFELROFRE
HBRFNEE  YHERENS I R/KREFRE
EH @R -



and [(Fevernance

Lol g 4 s

Report Scope

The Board of Lifestyle China Group Limited (the “"Group”) believes that
the business of the Group is closely linked to the environment and society
in various ways, and we will disclose and report matters that we believe
are relevant and important to the Group's mission.

Business philosophy

As a premier department store operator, we regard integrity as our core
value and we believe that the Group’s presence and prosperity is
interdependent and interconnected with the society and we adhere to the
following philosophy in conducting our business:

1. Customers: our mission is to operate one-stop department stores,
so that our customers can enjoy a pleasant shopping experience.

2. Employees: employees are our most precious asset and we treat
them with fairness and respect and maintain a working environment
to unleash their full potentials.

3. Business partners: we do business with our partners with integrity
and fairness and in a responsible manner. At the same time, we
expect and encourage our business partners to embrace high
standards of corporate responsibility similar to those of ours.

4. Community: we are dedicated to serve and contribute to the
communities in which our business is operated.

5. Shareholders: we endeavor to create sustainable returns to our
shareholders.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) R

Environment

Emissions

While creating economic value to the society with an aim to minimise the
impact of our business to the environment, we dedicate our effort to
establishing sustainable development and act as a responsible
corporation in discharging our social responsibilities. To achieve these
objectives, we strive to take appropriate measures to ensure that correct
decisions and executions are made at all levels of our operation.

To contribute environmentally sustainable development, we are
committed to:

1. eliminating resources wasting misconduct

2. minimizing uses of scarce resources and energy

3. adopting environmental friendly operating solutions

4. promoting environmental protection and conservation awareness
5. setting sustainable and measurable environmental protection targets

The primary sources of greenhouse gas emissions of the Group include
electricity, water and natural gas consumption. Hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes mainly come from sewage, kitchen, construction and
household wastes. We focus on measuring and reporting carbon
reduction results and promoting waste reduction at source. In this
connection, we strictly comply with relevant legislative requirements on
sewage and waste disposal, and appoint government approved
professional firms to carry out recycling treatment, so as to implement
effective environmental management system standards. Regular
inspections on the Group’s operations are conducted by relevant
government environmental protection authorities. The result of annual
government inspection on all relevant water pollution and waste disposal
for the year 2017 was passed and complied with government standards.
KPI A1.1: There are 8 types of emissions including air pollutant, kitchen
waste, slop oil, household waste, domestic wastewater,
construction waste, sewage well and grease trap wastes. The
total emission and corresponding intensity in the year 2017 was
441,783.71 tonnes and 1.63 tonnes/sq.m. respectively.

KPIA1.2: The greenhouse gas emission of carbon dioxide and
corresponding intensity for the year 2017 was 51,865.19 tonnes
and 0.19 tonnes/sqg.m. respectively.

KPI'A1.3: The total hazardous waste produced and corresponding
intensity in the year 2017 was 587.49 tonnes and 2.17 kg/sq.m.
respectively.

KPI A1.4: The total non-hazardous waste produced and corresponding
intensity in the year 2017 was 441,196.47 tonnes and 1.63
tonnes/sq.m. respectively.
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KPI A1.5: The measures taken to mitigate emissions and their results for B34 2017 B UAF 2 AR FRRUE R B2 B0 15
the year 2017 are as follows: FEIEALS MRS RCREIIAT o

we strived to minimise carbon impact to the surrounding area by
adopting environmental friendly construction processes.

we strived to use environmental friendly products and services for
our decoration and renovation projects in order to minimise the
creation of harmful substance. For instance, we would request our
contractors to use environmental friendly and energy saving
products which are approved by relevant government authorities,
especially materials such as adhesives, paints, coatings, etc., which
must be low VOC (Volatile Organic Compounds) compliant.

KPI A1.6: Handling of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes, its

measurement and results of waste reduction for the year 2017
are as follows:

Set up a sewage treatment system for handling sewage in
compliance with the Government’s “Pollutant discharge standard
for urban sewage treatment plant”.

Waste prevention and management play an indispensable role in
our overall environmental policy. Accordingly, we have established
an effective waste management approach to ensure that collection
and treatment of waste were carried out in compliance with relevant
government regulations and would cause the least impact on the
surrounding environment. We will strictly follow the relevant
government requirements and engage government approved
professional firms to carry out separation, recycling and removal of
waste.

Food wastages mainly came from our catering tenants and staff
canteen. We provide guidance to our catering tenants and
employees to promote food waste prevention by reducing
unnecessary production and consumption. At the same time, we
have procedures in place on collection and treatment of food waste
which are in accordance with the principles and requirements as set
by the government. As opposed to dumpling, landfilling or selling
food waste in an illegal manner, we will engage the municipal city
government approved professional firms to carry out collection and
removal of food waste.
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Use of Resources

We are committed to minimizing the overall energy consumption in our
daily operations. Through scientific management and implementing
appropriate controls in every part of our operations, we strive to maximise
the energy efficiency and minimise the wastage of electricity, gas fuel and
water resources.

KPI'A2.1:

KPI'A2.2:

KPI'A2.3:

Our direct and indirect energy consumption by type for the
year 2017 was 60,535,155 kWh of electricity; 110,221 cubic
meters of natural gas consumption, and 17,644 tonnes of steam
energy consumption. Accordingly, the energy consumption
intensity was 224kWh/sq.m., 0.41 cubic meter/sq.m. and 0.07
tonnes/sq.m. respectively.

The total water consumption and corresponding intensity for
the year 2017 was 483,865 tonnes and 1.79 tonnes/sg.m.
respectively.

Electricity is mainly consumed by air conditioning systems,
vertical transportation systems, general lighting, refrigeration
systems, plumbing and drainage systems and . T facilities within
the Group's department stores/buildings. Our initiatives on
improving the efficiency of energy use and the results achieved
for the year 2017 are as follows:
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Energy efficiency and environmental friendliness are the most
important selection criteria in our new equipment and facilities
procurement process, priority will be given to those lighting and
power equipment which are energy-efficient and environmental
friendly. Energy efficiency requirements are also applied to the
tendering processes. In 2017, to better achieve energy saving, heat
pump units revamp had been included in the work agenda at our
Shanghai store and energy-efficient and environmental-friendly
centrifugal heat pump units would be considered. In the meantime,
chiller plants at Suzhou store are also planned to be upgraded from
fixed-speed to variable-speed start-up.

To reduce substantially the energy consumption, we are gradually
replacing the traditional lighting sources with high efficiency, long-
life and low power consumption LED lightings. Following the
completion of the LED lightings renovation project in back office
area and supermarket area at Shanghai store in 2017, the
requirement of the use of LED lightings was further applied to
tenants in order to rationalise the reduction of electricity and energy
consumption. At the same time, initiative had also been made at
Suzhou store to replace the present traditional lightings with LED
lightings in the back office area.

To improve the energy efficiency of the piping and drainage
systems, we carried out alteration and improvement works on the
sewage pump system of the water collection wells. In 2017, the
reconstruction of 2 sets of drainage systems for catchment wells,
and re-planning and renovation of the sewer piping in the snack
section of the supermarket has been completed at our Shanghai
store. At the same time, in 2017, the conditions and piping of all
water collecting wells, sewage wells and grease traps at basement
second floor of Suzhou store was evaluated; pipes with trachoma
and serious corrosion were replaced; and ageing electric motors
with weak sewage discharge capacity were replaced; tube well level
alarm device was updated to improve the efficiency of the drainage
system equipment.
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With the outstanding achievement in maintaining low carbon
emission and good energy saving performance during 2014 to 2016,
our Shanghai store has been invited by the Shanghai Jing'an district
Commerce Committee to participate in nomination for the title of
Top Runner for the enterprises’ energy conservation and emission
reduction. Meanwhile, according to the actual total energy
consumption in 2017 at Shanghai store, we successfully completed
the carbon emission task for 2017 assigned by Shanghai Municipal.
Compared with the same period in 2016, we reduce around 160
tonnes of coal consumption and were awarded RMB90,000 as
incentives in respect of energy saving. Suzhou store was also able to
obtain the energy system certification in 2016, and received
RMB80,000 of government subsidies. Besides, based on provincial
and municipal examination and evaluation and being energy saving
advanced unit in Jiangsu Province, we passed assessment by
Suzhou Municipal Energy Conservation Supervision Center and
inspection of enterprises’ information via online submission and
passed the review of energy system certification and building
carbon emission verification.

KPI A2.4: Water consumption mainly comes from sanitary facilities for our

customers and staff as well as the water-cooled air conditioning
systems. Water efficiency enhancement initiatives adopted by
the Group in the year 2017 and their results are as follows:

In 2017, water requirements were optimized at Shanghai Store,
reducing the water consumption in air-conditioning. Drainage
system of staff canteen was upgraded to reduce water wastage. At
the same time, the replacement of the air-conditioning system at
the 7th floor atrium has been completed and efficiency of water
consumption has been enhanced.

In 2017, inspection of the catering tenants ' kitchens was conducted
at Suzhou store, sprinkler systems of tenants were duly tested and
effective planning was made regarding curtain glass wall cleaning
and floor cleaning to effectively control the use of water.
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Environment and Natural Resources RERXAER

We support environmental protection and constantly assess the &£E—EBIXHREAWVHENTHRCLBERENEE
effectiveness of the measures taken to minimise the impact of our EAEFHEHLEBRETEBYURBARRERE
business operation to the surrounding environment so that appropriate K& - MR {EHERE - BRAEHREEFERE
improvement actions could be taken promptly. These measures include — BERRBARIRR4K - A A - BB ERE - S

the use of energy-efficient lightings, paper usage reduction, turning off i

T 2% 3R 16 A 54 AR © S I A1

idle lightings, computers and electrical appliances and other facilities and SR TR AR HEBIRRERNER - T ESEEME
equipment to save energy. We are also committed to promoting the use  FANRRAREENFEYLE -

of recycle paper and shopping bags made of recycle paper in our stores.

KPI A3.1: Appropriate actions are taken to manage and minimise the  BES4EX SECRIITEEREEKTEEHIRE
impacts of our operations to the environment and natural EIZA3  RAREBRNEATE  BEAEERE

resources. We actively promote environmental protection and
emphasise green operation and green office. Policies and
measures are implemented to enhance energy conservation
and emission reduction management. Relevant policies and
measures taken in 2017 are as follows:

— Implementation of office automation systems. In 2017, the Group ~ —
implemented electronic office automation systems to optimize
office procedures and streamline processes to reduce the use of
office paper and promote the Group's paperless office operation

—  Implementing double-sided printing and reusing and recycling  —
toner cartridges, paper, envelope and paper files. In 2017, we
changed the A4 full-page version to the A5 half-page version in
respect of the relevant forms when necessary to facilitate the
reduction of paper consumption at our stores. At the same time,
printing facilities are being adjusted to reduce the consumption of
consumables. Centralised collection and disposal of used
consumables is adopted to minimise environmental pollution
resulting from improper waste disposal.

—  Procuring and using recycled paper bags instead of traditional = —
packaging bags. To advocate environmentally responsible
shopping, we provide customers with recycled paper bags with
printed recyclable marks to remind customers that the bags are
recyclable. We take appropriate measures to comply with “General
Technical Requirements of the environmental protection, safety and
labelling for plastic shopping bags” and “Notice on restrictions of
manufacturing and the sale of plastic bags” issued by the
government. Reduction on plastic bag consumption was achieved
through charging customers for plastic bags, and provide plastic
bags when necessary to ensure reasonable usage.

—  Encouraging the use of environmental friendly materials and energy ~ —
efficient equipment in our construction projects; incorporating
environmental friendly concept into the design of our office and
stores, including adopting open atrium design to maximise the use
of natural light and share lightings in common areas, and utilising
existing furniture and resources where possible during renovations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) R

In 2017, our new project located in Jing'an District has focused on
the importance of green, environmental protection and energy
saving in the whole project development, design and construction.
The project meets the requirements of “green building” in many
aspects such as land-saving and outdoor environment, energy-
saving and energy utilisation, water-saving and water resource
utilisation, resource-saving materials and materials utilisation, indoor
environmental quality and operation management. After the project
was awarded the German Energy Certification in 2015, the project
was awarded in 2017 the excellence environmental protection case
in the "International Jing An, Green Development “ which was held
by Jing'an District Environmental Protection Bureau. The project will
soon receive 2-Star Green Construction and the United States LEED
gold certification. We aim to achieve a coordinated development of
people, buildings and the natural environment and while utilising
natural resources and handmade means to create a good and
healthy living and entertainment environment, we aim to controlling
and minimising the use and destruction of the natural environment.

Social
Employment and Labour Practices
Employment

As of 31 December 2017, we had 1,371 employees.

As an employer of equal opportunities, the Group’s employment policy
aims to provide a working environment where there is no discrimination
on the basis of race, gender, religion, age, etc., and establishing a sound
and quality work environment to attract talents. All applicants enjoy equal

opportunities and fairness.

g T—

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2017

— 07 FKBMNRFLEMFTBEELRE
P ISRMBEBHE  RIR - ﬁ%mé
EHEFNEEBEEER - BE D RIEEH

ELEAMRIE - fNEEERELIRFA - BKEIKE
ﬁﬂ M EMEERFA - EANREMR
=z féﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁféﬁ_%xi
Eilﬁﬁﬁézmsﬁéﬁ% AR AREERER -
NR2017 FEF EATHZRRERERD
[BEHFLHECERE| RREFRN - BER
EHESgE - ENERLEEDS #RE - £8
LA BEANEBARENRBALRBEZ
EFMBARAMEEMAIFRAIERL - @5
E’JE{I IRELIRBE WY R B - 3 1) AE MO I2E Il AN

A B AR A IR R o

e

EEREIER

&

HIE2017F 128318 - A5£EE1,371BEE -

SEEATERERE  BRERBKKBARE—ET
FHEERK 5 R FREEMERNTER
52y —(lAxE &%E’E’JIT’B&% W‘&%\/\ﬁ
FIABMHAEAZTEFSHERA



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &i% -

In order to attract and retain outstanding talents, the Group has a
comprehensive performance appraisal management system and regularly
communicates with employees to ensure its transparency and fairness.
Through the assessment of employees’ job performance, employ and
promote these with common values and professional ethics, and
recognise employees who are self-motivated, responsible and honest in
order to ensure the continued improvement of the Group's business.

Employees’ remuneration package is reviewed regularly. The evaluation
makes reference to local labour market and the level of salaries and
benefits in the same industry and takes into account of employees’
performance and experience to ensure that competitive remuneration
package are being offered so as to motivate continuous improvement and
contribution to the Group. In terms of employee dismissal, we follow the
local labour laws and regulations as stipulated by the government.

Our policy on working hours, rest days, other benefits and welfare are in
line with the requirements of the local government and industry practices.
In addition to paid annual leave, we also offer employees other types of
holidays, including sick leave, marriage leave, maternity leave and care
leave.

Furthermore, we take steps and initiations to maintain a harmonious
labour relationship. We also work with labour unions to organise a wide
range of leisure and cultural activities to express our care to our
employees and promote healthy lifestyle and strengthen their sense of
belonging and cohesiveness to the Group. The leisure and cultural
activities held in 2017 included New Year dinner gathering, badminton
and basketball competitions, etc.

In 2017, there were no serious breaches of applicable legislations and/or
regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) R

KPIB1.1: The Group's workforce can be divided into five age groups: 18-
20 years old, 21-30 years old, 31-40 years old, 41-50 years old

and 50 years old or above.

Employees’ distribution by gender, type of employment and age in 2017

are shown in the following charts:

Gender Distribution

1 5l 3

Female Zl%
Male S

By Employment Type
RERERE S

Labour Contracts %1% AR
Services Contracts %3R5 %54 [

By Age

RERARE D
18-20 years old 18-20 R F B B B B 4
21-30 years old 21-30 R FERERIEEY
31-40 years old N-A0RFIREREB A
41-50 years old 450 BEF R BRI B 4
50 years old or above 50 A L FERERfE B 4&
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B - # R E4HRE ()

Health and Safety

We always strive to provide and maintain a safe and healthy environment
for all customers, employees, and business partners. Therefore, we
provide comprehensive insurance coverage for work injury and employer
liability. We conduct regular inspection of premises, provide training and
education to our employees on disaster prevention, fire drills,
occupational safety, as well as first aid training to enhance employees’
knowledge and skills to prevent accidents.

—  Maintaining proper lightings and ventilation systems and a clean
environment in both office and on sales floors, and providing
sufficient working space in the offices.

—  Smoking is prohibited in office and department store areas.

—  Following government guidelines relating to severe weather
warnings such as typhoons and rainstorms.

At the same time, employee is expected to share the responsibility in the
making and monitoring of procedures and arrangements in respect of
safety and health. All employees will:

—  co-operate in identifying, reporting and rectifying of hazards at work
in relation to health and safety and report such hazards immediately
to superiors or the security department.

—  co-operate in the investigation of any accidents or hazards to
preventing them from happening or re-occurrence.

—  co-operate with management in adopting safe working methods
and procedures.

KPI B2.1: There was no work related fatality incident reported in year
2017.
KPI B2.2: The number of loss of working days due to work injuries was

148 days in 2017.
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Staff Training and Development

We regard employees as valuable assets and their development helps
driving the growth of the Group. In pursuing our business objectives and
providing protection to the rights and interests of our employees, we aim
to put in place a suitable training platform that supports our employees’
personal development as well as the development of the Group through
performance evaluation, two-way communications and guestionnaires on
training needs. The employee development and training policies adopted
by the Group include:

—  providing new joiners with comprehensive orientation program to
assist new joiners familiar with the group.

—  providing employees with regular and ad-hoc internal training and
development workshops necessary to discharge their duties at work.

—  active sourcing of suitable external training programs. In 2017, we
worked with professional training institutions to provide supervisor
level outward development workshops and middle to senior
management level training programs. These workshops and
programs covered aspects such as management and team building
skills which were provided by professional trainers.

—  post training evaluations were conducted to assess the effectiveness
of these training programmes.

.afestyle
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &i% -

Labour Standards

We are committed to complying with the relevant local labour laws and
regulations, and ensure that the employment contracts with employees
are on a fair, equal, voluntary, mutually agreed and good faith basis. We
adopt employment policy and procedures which prohibit forced labour
and child labour. The same requirements are expected to also apply to
our concessionaires and tenants.

KPI B4.1: We strive to perform continuous review and improvement in
the recruitment practices to prevent child labour and forced
labour.

The relevant policies adopted by the Group are:

—  Strictly prohibiting any departments to request and/or employ any
person who age below 16. The Human Resources Department is
responsible for the review of the age during recruitment to ensure
that no minors under the age of 16 are employed.

—  All employment must be on a voluntary basis and we do not allow
forced labour, or using any form of deception to allure employee to
work.

KPI B4.2: We were not aware of any child or forced labour incidents in
the year 2017. The Group believes that it is not exposed to any
risk of having child or forced labour in our business operation.
We are committed to taking immediate measures to eliminate
any noncompliance situations in respect of child or forced
labour.

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

We establish our practices and build our supply chain management based
on the business model that is sales of direct purchased merchandises and
sales of branded merchandises through concessionaire and leasing
arrangements. Through seamless cooperation with suppliers and business
partners, and highly efficient information technology networks, we are
able to work smoothly along the supply chain which optimises the
resources allocation to deliver high-quality products and services to our
customers.

The supply chain management policy and procedures adopted include:

—  to cooperate in a fair, honest and responsible manner with suppliers
who share our business philosophy.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B - H 2R AWM E (F)

—  suppliers are contractually prohibited to hire child labour.

—  suppliers are contractually obliged to ensure that the products they
offer are non-toxic and meet relevant government and industry
requirements and standards.

KPI B5.2: Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers

—  suppliers are required to meet the Group's product requirements,
such as price, quantity and delivery time.

—  selection process of suppliers is based on a set of standards,
including quality control and compliance with relevant standards
applicable in China and/or globally.

—  renewal of supplier contracts is subject to satisfactory results upon
review of their performance during the contract period.

Product Responsibility

We believe that our reputation is built on delivering high quality products
and services to our customers. Our operation team is committed to
providing safe and high quality products and services to our customers,
and addressing customer complaints with utmost attention.

Moreover, we believe that product safety is the key to our success. We
strictly follow the industry standards and government regulations relevant
to our products and services. We provide trainings to employees to
enhance their consciousness of product safety in order to prevent any
counterfeits and sub-standard merchandises being sold at our stores and
to protect the rights and interests of our consumers.

The product safety policies adopted by us are as follow:

—  For non-food products, regular quality checks are conducted on
products provided by our suppliers and business partners to ensure
that these products meet the relevant safety standards and
requirements. Special attention is placed on the compliance with
those regulations and requirements related to baby and children
products, toys and customer safety to ensure that our product sales
fully complies with the relevant regulations and requirements of the
PRC.

—  For food products, we assume the primary responsibility for food
safety in accordance with the relevant provisions of the “Food
Safety Law of the PRC". We also follow policies and procedures
such as "Purchase inspection and recording policy”, “Food selling
procedure management”, “Procedures regarding removal of sub-
standard food items from shelves”, and “policy and procedures
relating to reporting and handling of emergency food safety
incident” etc. to ensure all food items provided are safe.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &i% -

KPI B6.2: In 2017, our customer services include supports extended to
customers before, during and after the sales. All complaints
were handled by professional personnel of our customer service
department. Details of the complaints, monitoring and status,
handling time and settlement were properly recorded. In 2017,
customer complaints received by the Group were consistent
with those of the industry.

KPI B6.3: Practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual

property rights.

The Group understands brand equity is critical to our success. We allocate
resources to maintain and protect the intellectual property rights of our
brands.

—  We value intellectual property and recognise intellectual property is
an indispensable element of successful business.

— We manage and protect our intellectual property through
registration and maintenance and enforcement of our intellectual

property.

—  We respect intellectual property rights of others and do not infringe
their intellectual property rights.

Anti-corruption

We strive to achieve transparency, integrity and accountability in our
operations and require our employees to maintain high standard on
ethics, personal and professional conducts in order to maintain and
promote the Group's reputation. In addition to these codes of conduct for
employees, we have in place a conflict of interest declaration and
whistleblowing mechanism, which we share with our business partners to
minimise and mitigate any situations that may lead to the occurrence of
conflict of interests or corruptions. We consider integrity as our core value
and we encourage our employees to report any misconduct or fraudulent
behaviour. Our anti-corruption policy is set out in the Employees’
Handbook and the undertaking signed by our suppliers.

KPIB7.1: In 2017, there were not any members of the Group or any of the
employees during his/her employment term was prosecuted for
corruption.
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Community Investment

We adhere to the concept of “Giving back to society” and proactively
participate in community and social services to promote corporate social
responsibilities and make contributions to the society. In this regard, we
actively invest to support the community, especially to those less
privileged group as well as the young generation in terms of education,
growth and development. Through connecting and interacting with the
community, we aim to:

—  support less privileged group and bring them love and hopes;

—  encourage employees to be compassionate and caring;

—  strengthen our employees’ sense of belonging to the society; and
—  provide education to help them achieving better future.

KPIB8.1: The Group contributes its time and resources to the community
in the following areas:

—  supporting and interacting with the community (such as the less
privileged group and people with disabilities); and

—  education
The related actions in each area include:

—  For education support, activities we organised in 2017 were as
follows,

M An exhibition and charity bazaar “Rainbow Art, Contribute to
Earth” was held during 11 March to 16 April, 2017 at our
Shanghai store for supporting the Shanghai Charitable
Education and Training Center through activities and
donations, subsidising the young children in need. A donation
of RMB 50,000 was made to the charity.

™M On 5 September 2017, our Shanghai store continued with the
sponsorship it made in 2015 and 2016 to Ma You Primary
School in one of the poverty areas of Guizhou, donating
sports equipment, teaching materials, and computer supplies.
On top of this, we extended our support in 2017 and helped
the school to set up a library by donating about 1,000 books
which was worth RMB 8,900, making this charity event more
meaningful with far-reaching legacy.

M Suzhou store participated the charitable education support
activities held by Suzhou Industrial Park Charity Foundation
on 30 August 2017. The education support charity activity
aims to give students from needy families the opportunities to
learn and acquire knowledge. Suzhou Jiuguang donated
RMB100,000 in this event.
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—  For community care, activities we participated in 2017 were as
follows,

|

On 1 January 2017, we continued to participate in the “Love
under Blue Sky — Charity Sale by Thousands of Shop” event
hosted by the Shanghai Charity Foundation, and donated part
of a day’s sales receipts in the amount of RMB7,000 to support
women for gynecological examination and the elderly with
financial difficulties.

On 9 January 2017, staff volunteers at Shanghai store visited
centenarians during the Spring Festival. They conveyed
greetings to the 196 centenarians in Jing'an District, and gave
them gifts valued at RMB 145,824. As to Suzhou store, we are
currently liaising with “Suzhou Yijiayi Public Welfare Service
Centre” with an aim to participating in their charitable
activities in the future.

KPI B8.2: We continued to work actively with various charitable

Outlook

organisations to interact with local communities in a variety of
ways during the year. In 2017, we donated RMB311,724 to less
privileged group and teenagers. The charitable organisation we
worked with included Shanghai Charity Foundation, Shanghai
Jing’an District Civil Affairs Bureau, Shanghai Charitable
Education and Training Centre, and Suzhou Industrial Park
Charity Foundation.

We will continue to uphold our principle in a responsible manner and
strive to strike a balance among the interests of our customers,
employees, shareholders and the society, and make contributions to the

society.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) Ri% -

Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

A. Environmental

&5l

BR
A1. Emissions
23,67
General ¢ Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
Disclosure regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
— R greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
ARARER SR ERIBHER  AKRTOIES - BERBEEEZYNELEN © ()
B R (b) BFHETABEAXENRRER RPN ER -
A1.1  The types of emissions and respective emissions data.
BERCiE R AR B
A1.2  Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity.
BERBAHERERTE
A1.3  Total hazardous waste produced and intensity
MEEREEZMREREE
I;%g%@@b@ Al4  Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity
AR FREL BEBERNBERTE
A1.5  Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved.
R E B R E B b AT S AR -
A1.6  Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results achieved
Wl REAENESERYNIE  REEEENERRIEKER
A2. Use of Resources
BEIRER
General * Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
Disclosure materials.
—RIE BRERER (BERR  KREMEME) HBK o
A2.1  Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type and intensity.
REAESNERR S EEEREEERTE -
A2.2  Water consumption in total and intensity.
BRKERTE -
kPl A23  Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
ST it B R P Rt B AT S AR -
RSB RIEIR o A o . o
A2.4  Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
i aCREE R E AT BEAIRIRE - SARERT Ak e st &I R FTISBR ©
A2.5  Total packaging material used for finished products.
SRR BEM AR -
A3. The Environment and Natural Resources
RERKXRER
General e Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and
Disclosure natural resources. i
T WIERT AR AR L BN EAYEHRE -
KPI A3.1  Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and
BB i natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

AR BRDEHRERRAERNEAZERERREEAMETBNT -
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RE — BRER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &i% -

B.  Social
e
B1. Employment
&
General ® Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
Disclosure regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation
— MR R and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
BRI R RIS RS - TIER B - (R FERE - 2ol - REAR
PAREARRIE KRB « (a) B : R (b) BTHETAREATENHEMERE
KRB E RS -
KPI B1.1  Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and
BSERUELT geographical region.

R~ BIERRE - FERARI MRS D HES B -
B2. Health and Safety

REHEZZ
General ¢ Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
Disclosure regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a
—MRIRER safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.
ARRE L2 THERERRERBERBRIEBEZN : (@) B & () 8TYH
BIIABERZENBBERRAOINER o
KPI ) B2.1  Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
FASERUEE A TERAEMIE TR ABR LK -
B2.2  Lost days due to work injury.

RATBEALATERE -

B3. Development and Training

R RIE
General e Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties
Disclosure at work. Description of training activities.
—RIKEE BRATETHE B BT TIERE M AR N B BERBUR - #EFIES) -

B4. Labour Standards

BTER
General ¢ Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
Disclosure regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing
— R child and forced labour.
ARARLLE T koo il Te) « (a) BUR + R (o) T BT ABEARZEMIER
ERRIRBIER o
B4.1  Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour.
KP'in s iR RIS B A A R E T RoRHIST o
RS iRE IR B4.2  Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

R B3R B BB LR H R B BB SLAT ESRERRO 25 8% ©

Section Reference
(Page Number)
EH2E (B1)

Employment and Labour
Practices

— Employment
BIERSIER — EF
(20-22)

(22)

Employment and Labour
Practices

— Health and Safety
BIERSTER
—REEZE

(23)

(23)

(23)

Employment and Labour
Practices

— Staff Training and
Development
ERESTER

— R RE

(24)

Employment and
Labour Practices

— Labour Standards
EBRERBIER

— B THR|

(25)

(25)

(25)
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B. Social

HE
B5. Supply Chain Management

HEEEE
General e Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
Disclosure EIRHIERNIRIR R AL B BB o
— MR I ER

B5.2  Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of

KPI suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are

iR iE et implemented and monitored.
PERRAATRIR G R AEERNES  mERTERENNHEREE  UREH
BHIRENITREER 7L -

B6. Product Responsibility

EmEE

General ¢ Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and

Disclosure regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and

—MRARER safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
ARAMREERMRHORERTS - BE - RERLREE L RERUTAR -
@ BE : K b) ETHBTABERTENABERRROINER

B6.2  Number of products and service related complaints received and how
they are dealt with.
<P SR MR R R IR VIR R DL BRI -
RARAE BRI B6.3  Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual

property rights.
it A I AR AN EE R R ARV 1E ) -

B7. Anti-corruption

RES
General ¢ Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
Disclosure regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
— I = extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BRADI AR - B - AFEMOEREN ¢ (@) BER ¢ & b) EFHETABEKR
T ENEBERIRPINEHR -
KPI B7.1  Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
BARETUEE against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERPRHETASEESREVEEENESHFARENE B RFA
R o
B8. Community Investment
HEREE
General ® Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
Disclosure communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
— R E consideration the communities’ interests.
BRANERSER T REEMELRFENRRLEEEHEE BLRAEH
R e
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).
KPI X EREE(NHE  BEEE BIHK @F k- EE) -
RSB MR

B8.2  Resource contributed to the focus areas

HETHEBNHERIIA

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2017

Section Reference
(Page Number)
EH2Z (BH)

Operating Practices

— Supply Chain
Management

SEEN — HEEEE
(25-26)

(26)

Operating Practices

— Product Responsibility
2EEY —EREME
(26-27)

(@7)

@7)

Operating Practices
— Anti-corruption
HEEM — REF
@7)

@7)

Community
i
(28-29)

(28)

(29



Corporate Governance Report
ERER/RRE

Corporate Governance Principles

The board of directors (“Board”) and management of the Company are
committed to maintaining good corporate governance practices
appropriate to the businesses of the Group. The Company has adopted
the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code ("CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
("Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) as its guidelines and focus on a quality Board, sound internal
controls, and transparency and accountability to all stakeholders.

Codes Compliance
The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG Code for
the year ended 31 December 2017, except the following deviation:

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are not segregated
but such arrangement facilitates the development and execution of the
Group's business strategies and enhances efficiency and effectiveness of
its operations.

The Board

(1) Board Composition
As at the date of this report, the Board consists of a total of five
directors, including one executive director, one non-executive
director and three independent non-executive directors. More than
one-third of the Board is represented by independent non-
executive directors with one of whom being a certified public
accountant. The Board believes that the number of executive and
non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to provide
sufficient checks and balances that would safeguard the interests of
the shareholders and the Company. The directors possess
professional qualification and knowledge and industry experience
and expertise, which enable them to make valuable and diversified
advice and guidance to the Group’s business activities and
development.

The Company adopted a Board diversity policy in accordance with
the requirements set out in the code provisions of the CG Code.
The Company recognizes the benefits of having a diverse Board,
and sees diversity at the Board level is essential in achieving a
sustainable and balanced development. In designing the Board's
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge,
industry experience and expertise. All Board appointments are
based on meritocracy and considered against a variety of criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Details of the composition of the Board are set out in the
"Corporate Information” in this annual report. Details of the
changes to the composition of the Board during the year and up to
the date of this report are provided in the “Directors’ Report” under
the section “Directors”. The directors’ biographies and the
relationships among them are set out in the "Profile of Directors” in
this annual report.
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The independence of the independent non-executive directors is
assessed according to the relevant rules and requirements under
the Listing Rules. The Company has received written confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors and the Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive directors meet the independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, being
the same person, is responsible for setting overall strategic plan and
development of the Group as well as for implementing the Board's
decisions, monitoring and supervising the Group's overall
performance, ensuring adequate capital and managerial resources
are available to implement the business strategies being adopted
from time to time, setting out and monitoring targets, plans and
direction for management, reporting to the Board on the Group's
performance and proposing business plans and strategies for
further evaluation and assessment by the Board.

Responsibilities

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. The Board steers and oversees the management of the
Company including, establishing the strategic direction and setting
long-term objectives for the Company, monitoring the performance
of management, protecting and maximizing the interests of the
Company and its shareholders, and reviewing, considering and
approving and the subsequent reviewing and monitoring of the
annual budget against actual performances and results. The Board
has delegated management, under the leadership of the Chief
Executive Officer, with authorities and responsibilities for the day-
to-day operations and administration of the Group.

Each director has a duty to act in good faith in the best interests of
the Company. The directors are aware of their collective and
individual responsibilities to the Company and the shareholders in
respect of the manner in which the affairs of the Company are being
controlled and managed.

Directors are requested to make declaration of their direct or
indirect interests, if any, in any proposals or transactions to be
considered by the Board. If a director has a potential conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with in
accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if
appropriate, an independent board committee will be set up to
deal with the matter.

All directors have full access to and are provided with adequate,
reliable and timely information about the operations and latest
development of the Group to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities and make timely decision. Updates have also been
provided to all members of the Board on a regular basis to enable
them to discharge their duties. Operational and financial

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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information and analysis of the Group can be accessed directly
through briefing and reporting by the Chief Executive Officer and
management during Board meetings. Through the company
secretary, independent professional advice, on the account of the
Company, could be sought should such advice be considered
necessary by any director for carrying out his/her duties properly.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

After recommendation from the nomination committee,
appointment of new director(s), if any, is vested with the Board.
Under the Company’s articles of association, the Board may from
time to time appoint a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. Any such new director shall hold office until
the first general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a
casual vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company (in the case of an addition to the Board) after his/
her appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at the
same general meeting.

All non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) are appointed for a specific term of three years and all
directors (including non-executive directors) are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and are
subject to re-election in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association.

Meetings

The Board held four meetings during the year to review and
approve, among other matters, the Group's interim and final results
announcements and financial statements and the continuing
connected transaction, and to review quarterly operating
performance of the Group.

Board members attended the Company’s Board meetings either in
person or through telephone conferencing means in accordance
with the provisions of the Company’s articles of association. The
attendance record of each director at the Board meetings held
during the year is set out below:

(4)

(5)
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Number of board meetings attended/held

HEBRTESESINK
Board Annual General

Meetings Meeting
Directors = EEgg REBERE
Executive Director BITES
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas gt Pt 4/4 171
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy PRIEIS/NE 4/4 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHITES
Ms. Cheung Mei Han aRIEI/ N 3/4 0/1
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond RIS & 4/4 0/1
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai MAET - 4/4 11
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Practices and Conduct of Board and Board Committee
Meetings

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring the proper
convening and conducting of the Board and Board committee
meetings, with the relevant notices, agenda and Board and Board
committee papers being provided to the directors and relevant
Board committee members in a timely manner before the meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all
Board and Board committee meetings. Board and Board committee
minutes are available for inspection by the directors and Board
committee members.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Induction package covering the Group’s businesses and the
statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed
company will be provided to each newly appointed director, if any.
The Company continuously updates the directors on the Group's
businesses and the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements.

During the year, the directors participated the following training:

(6)

(7)

ESERHBETZESEBZEARER
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REETZEegE  UNETIHNER
RESKAETERZEeRBIRHEMAME
M EHRARNEESERAETZESSH

S

AREAMEREREFFEEEGNEETRE
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Types of Training

Directors = EHER
Executive Director HITES

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas BIE skt AC
Non-executive Director FHTES

Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy BRAES/IME AC
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Ms. Cheung Mei Han SR/ NME AC
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond RIS & AC
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai AR A ABC

A — reading materials given by the Company relating to the
Company's businesses and regular updates on the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements relevant to

director’s duties and responsibilities

attending briefings/seminars/conferences/forums relevant to
director’s duties and responsibilities

reading newspapers and journals relating to corporate
governance matters, environment and social issues or
director’s duties and responsibilities

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
("Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors. After specific enquiries by the Company, all
directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Statements

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017. The directors have ensured that the financial
statements of the Group are prepared so as to give a true and fair view of
the Group's state of affairs, the results and cash flow for the year, and on a
going concern basis in accordance with the statutory requirements and
applicable accounting and financial reporting standards.

The directors also ensure timely publication of the Group's financial
statements and aim to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance and position through all its
publications and communications to the public. They are also aware of the
requirements under the applicable rules and regulations about timely
disclosure of inside information.

The report from the auditor of the Company regarding their
responsibilities and opinion on the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report. The Board has taken steps to
ensure the continued objectivity and independence of the external
auditor. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the remunerations paid/
payable to the external auditor of the Company were approximately
RMB2.3 million and approximately RMBO0.4 million in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided to the Group respectively. Details of
significant non-audit services and the fees incurred are as follows:

Review of interim financial information

for the six months ended 30 June 2017 RMBO0.4 million
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Board Committees

As at the date of this report, the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and nomination committee are in operation and they have
been established with specific terms of references to assist the Board in
discharging its responsibilities.

(1)  Audit Committee
The audit committee comprises three members, namely, Mr. Lam
Kwong Wai, Ms. Cheung Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man,
Raymond, all are independent non-executive directors. The audit
committee is chaired by Mr. Lam Kwong Wai, who is a certified
public accountant. The audit committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the audit committee setting out the
committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company'’s website.

The principal duties of the audit committee are as follows:

() to review the services and appointment of the Company’s
external auditor, the nature and scope of auditing, and the
related audit fees;

(i) to review the Company’s financial statements and reports, the
changes in accounting policies and practices, and the
compliance with applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and legal requirements;

(i) to oversee the Group's financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems; and

(iv)  to review and monitor the corporate governance functions as
set out in the CG Code.

The audit committee held two meetings during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

EZERTHEES

BEARSOH BRZEEE  FHEEGRES
ERRTER BEZONEEOREREBHE
FRETEAME -

(1 EKEES
BEREZEGH=RHEAK  BIMAERE L -
RERNERKINIEL - 2EKEHIRE
VHHTESF - EREBEEMMCE AN
FEX/F MR - EREE R ERR
HWERABITERE -

BEBETAMTARNGIEZEREZE SR
EHEFINEZEE G I RBECEHRAE
NGIF D

()  EHEARBEINEZEEIZ R RARE
IARAZBIE EEIE R AARREBRER

(ii) %lﬁﬂiﬂﬂzﬁﬁ%i&i‘%&ﬁ% C BRI
REEP 22 RERETEAS
R J:m%ﬁﬂ']&/i PIFRRE

(i) ERAEBEZHFHFHE - ABRERE
&W*BE*T FIEREHRE &

(v) e REEAETREY 2 EEAN

FR ERZEQERTRAGH  B%E8
BB HEE R ZREEHIIIT

\D]]I]

Number of meetings attended/held

Audit committee member EREEEHE HERITEBERH
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai (Chairman) KB LEE (£F) 2/2
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SRE/ME 2/2
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond SRIRSSE & 2/2

In the meetings, the audit committee (i) reviewed with external
auditor the Group's interim and annual financial statements and
reports before they were submitted to the Board for consideration
and approval; (i) reviewed with the external auditor the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group; (iii) reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems;
and (iv) reviewed the corporate governance functions of the Group.
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(2)

Remuneration Committee

Members of the remuneration committee comprise three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Kwong Wai,
who is the chairman of the remuneration committee, Ms. Cheung
Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond and one executive
director, namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. The remuneration
committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee setting out
the committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company's website.

The principal duties of the remuneration committee are to provide
advices and recommendations to the Board on (i) the remuneration
packages of the directors and senior management; (ii) any specific
remuneration packages with reference to market conditions,
performance of the Group and the individuals with reference to the
goals and targets as set by the Board from time to time; and (iii) if
necessary, any compensation arrangement for termination of office
of directors or senior management.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year.
The attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

(2)
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Number of meetings attended/held

Remuneration committee member FHESERE HE BTERRE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas 2SS A 171
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai (Chairman) MAEEE (FFF) 171
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SRER/NE 11
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond RIRX Fe 1”1
In the meeting, the remuneration committee reviewed and FHESeNe [ HEEeHEEERS

recommended for the Board's approval the remuneration packages EBEEN HEMEBER B MES -

of the directors and senior management for the year.
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(3)

Nomination Committee

Members of the nomination committee comprise three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Kwong Wai, Ms. Cheung
Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond and one executive
director, namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas who is the chairman
of the nomination committee. The nomination committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee setting out the
committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company's website.

The principal duties of the nomination committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(i)  to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive directors; and

(iv)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The nomination committee held one meeting during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

(3)
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Number of meetings attended/held

Nomination committee member REZEEHE HE " RITEBERE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (Chairman) B ste e A 11
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SR/ NE 11
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond RIS & 1”1
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai MAE L 1”1

In the meeting, the nomination committee (i) reviewed the existing
structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii) reviewed the
independence of independent non-executive directors; and
(iii) made recommendations to the Board on the proposed
re-election of the retiring directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, and maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems. As such, the Board not only
sets and communicates the Group's strategies and objectives but also
oversees the Group's risk management and internal controls systems on
an ongoing basis, and to ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal controls systems has been
conducted at least annually.

The audit committee plays a vital role in overseeing the risk management
and internal controls systems on behalf of the Board. The audit committee
reviews, on at least an annual basis, the Group's risk management and
internal controls systems to ensure that management has fulfilled its
duties in establishing and maintaining an effective risk management and
internal controls systems. It also assesses the extent and frequency of the
communication of the monitoring results to the Board, as well as
considering the results of any investigation into the Group's risk
management practices and internal controls and management’s responses
to the findings of such investigations. The audit committee performs
annual review for the adequacy of budget and resources, staff qualification
and experience, and the quality of training program of the Group's
internal audit, accounting and financial reporting functions.

The Group’s system of internal controls which includes a defined
management structure with limit of authority is designed to help the
achievement of business objectives, safeguard assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for external publication, and ensure compliance with
relevant legislation and regulations. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the operational
systems for the achievement of the Group's objectives.

The Group also regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information and procedures are in place for the handling of confidential
commercial information to ensure that inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is approved, and its
dissemination effectively made.
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The main features of the Group's risk management and internal controls
systems are illustrated below:
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The Group has established an organizational structure with defined levels
of responsibility and reporting procedures. Monthly management
accounts are available for review of the senior management and the Board
(in a concise format of a Monthly Report) for monitoring the Group's
financial and operating results. The management, supported by the
operation units and the internal audit team, are responsible for
formulating, implementing and monitoring sound risk management and
internal control systems, and reporting to the Board and the audit
committee on the result of risk assessment, as well as the assessment on
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.

The internal audit provides an independent appraisal on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems. The yearly internal audit plan is derived based on the assessed
risk of the Group's major operations and business and, taking into account
also result of internal audit activities conducted in the preceding period,
are reported to the audit committee for approval. In addition to its
scheduled internal audit works, the internal audit team may be requested
to conduct other review or investigative work. The results of internal audit
reviews and agreed management action plans in response to
recommendations of the internal audit are reported to the executive
director and audit committee periodically. The internal audit also follows
up with management regarding the implementation of the agreed action
plans to ensure that operation procedures and internal controls are
continuously enhanced.

In addition to the assessment and review of risk management and internal
controls undertaken internally, the half-yearly review and annual audit
conducted by our external auditors, aim to provide assurance that the
Group's financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, the Group’s accounting policies and
applicable laws, rules and regulations, will also provide to certain extent
independent checks on the Group's internal controls system.
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For the year ended 31 December, 2017, management has conducted
reviews during the year on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems covering all material aspects related to financial,
operational and compliance controls, various functions for risk
management and security of physical assets and information systems. The
audit committee had been reported during the audit committee meetings
of key findings identified by internal auditors and external auditors and
discussed findings and actions or measures taken in addressing those
findings relating to the Group's risk management and internal controls.
No material issues on the risk management and internal controls system
have been identified during the year ended 31 December 2017 and no
significant areas of concern which might require rectification works or
affect our stakeholders, including our shareholders. The Board and its
audit committee considered the risk management and internal control
system to be effective and adequate, including the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training and budget of its accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.

Commitment to Transparency

The Board emphasizes in creating and maintaining a high level of
transparency through timely disclosure of relevant information on the
Group's business and activities to the shareholders, investors, media and
investing public, through regular press releases, analysis's briefings, press
conferences, as well as timely updating of the Company’s website. Our
executive director and management, who look after the business
operation, are committed to respond to enquiries from regulators,
shareholders and business partners.

Investors’ Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential element in
building successful relationships with its shareholders. The Company
always seeks to provide relevant information to existing and potential
investors, not only to comply with the different regulatory requirements
but also to enhance transparency and communications with the
shareholders and the investing public. This is part of a continuous
communication program that encompasses meetings and relevant
announcements to the market in addition to periodic written reports in
the form of preliminary results announcement and the publication of
interim and annual reports. The forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company also provides an opportunity for communication between
the Board and the shareholders.

In addition, the Company also maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information about the Group is made available on a timely
basis. Regular meetings are also held with institutional investors and
research analysts to provide them with timely updates on the Group's
latest business developments which are not inside information (as defined
under the Listing Rules) in nature. These activities will keep the public
informed of the Group's activities and foster effective communications.

The Group also participated in investment conferences and forums during
the year in order to enhance the awareness of the investing public of the
Group's business operations and development strategies.
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The Company is committed to ensuring that it is fully complied with
disclosure obligations stipulated in the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential investors
have an equal opportunity to receive and obtain externally available
information released by the Group.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company, any
one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the shareholder(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the shareholder(s) by the Company.

The above written requisition shall be addressed to the Company’s head
office at 20th Floor, East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong.

The procedures regarding proposing a person for election as a director
are set out under the “Corporate Information” on the homepage of the
Company's website.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in writing
through the company secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Company Secretary

Lifestyle China Group Limited
20th Floor, East Point Centre
555 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2838 2030
Email: info@lifestylechina.com.hk

Constitutional Documents

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to its
memorandum and articles of association.
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Profile of Directors

EE/ET

Executive Director

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lau, aged 63, joined the Company in January 2016. He is the
Chairman, chief executive officer, and is also director of certain
subsidiaries and associated companies of the Company. Mr. Lau is also
the chairman and a non-executive director of Lifestyle International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lau is a
member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
Shanghai Committee and a member of the board of directors of the
Shanghai Jiao Tong University, the PRC.

Non-executive Director

Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy

Ms. Chan, aged 56, joined the Company in March 2016. She has over 20
years of experience in corporate management. Ms. Chan holds a degree
of Master of Business Administration from University of Leicester, the
United Kingdom and a degree of Bachelor of Laws from University of
Wolverhampton, the United Kingdom.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Cheung Mei Han

Ms. Cheung, aged 52, joined the Company in June 2016. Ms. Cheung is a
practicing solicitor in Hong Kong. She holds a degree of Bachelor of Laws
of the University of London and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws of The
University of Hong Kong. She is also an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Cheung has more than 25 years of
experience in the company secretarial sector. She has pursued the legal
career since 2006 and is currently a solicitor of S.Y. Wong & Co, a law firm
in Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond

Mr. Cheung, aged 63, joined the Company in June 2016. Mr. Cheung is an
entrepreneur and has over 10 years of experience in the department store
industry. He also has over 20 years of experience in the textile and
garment manufacturing industries and served as a director of the 15th
Board of Directors of the Federation of Hong Kong Garment
Manufacturers in the year of 1992.

Mr. Lam Kwong Wai

Mr. Lam, aged 62, joined the Company in June 2016. Mr. Lam serves as an
executive director, the group financial controller and the company
secretary of Chinese Estates Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange. He has over 40 years of experience in auditing, finance
and accounting industries. Mr. Lam is a Certified Public Accountants
(Practising) and holds a degree of Master of Business Administration from
the University of Warwick, United Kingdom.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHE

The board of directors (“Board”) of the Company present their annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are the operation of department stores and
supermarket business in the PRC and restaurant business.

Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 60.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017, comprising the discussion of the future business development and
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, are set out in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 4 to 5 and pages 6 to 12 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the “Five-Year Group Financial
Summary” on page 135. No important event affecting the Group has
occurred since the end of the financial year under review.

Discussions on the Group's environmental policies and performance,
relationships with key stakeholders, and compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations are contained in the "Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 13 to 32 of this annual report.

Shares
Details of movements during the year in the shares of the Company are
set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Debentures
The Group has not issued any debentures during the year.

Equity-linked Agreements
The Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the
year.

Distributable Reserves

Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association although there are no restrictions against such
rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The Group is principally involved in retail business which consists of direct
sales and sales under concessionaire arrangement. During the year, less
than 30.0% of the Group's turnover were attributed by the Group's five
largest customers and approximately 48.7% of the Group's purchase were
attributed by the Group's five largest suppliers in respect of our direct
sales and approximately 13.3% of the Group's purchases were attributed
by the largest supplier.

To the knowledge of the directors, none of the directors, their close
associates or any shareholder who owned more than 5% of the number of
issued shares had interest in any of the five largest suppliers of the Group.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Donations
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately RMB17,000 (2016: RMB859,000).

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Director
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Cheung Mei Han

Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond

Mr. Lam Kwong Wai

In accordance with Article 84 of the articles of association of the Company,
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond will retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, all
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2017, the directors’ and the chief executive’s interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

EERBETRAERKRG - HERKRS
REEEREZER

RZZE—+F+ZA=+—H SEERERTTH
ABRARBISEAMZBE AR (R(BEHFREE
Bl ([BHEREE GO EXVEMRATSE) 2R
7~ RGO REEZTPFHEREE S RBAEKRD
BEIIEHRELHENAET 2 ELMARBESRS
BARSHBRAE ([BRA))EF EmRA T E
MR e+ ATE 2 ( B ITAE T HITHELRR

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in SHEAESFE) (122578 ) BAE A RQ 7] REH ST
Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock — Z#EREARETIT ¢
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) were as follows:
Long position in shares of the Company AT ZHEE
Number of Percentage of
Name of director Nature of interest shares held issued shares
HERITRG
EENR EEME BFERGEE ZEDL
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Beneficial owner 66,051,460 4.12%
BBt e EnlEAA
Interest of controlled corporations (Note 1) 540,000,000 33.70%
SyEfEERERE (1)
Interest of controlled corporations (Note 2) 222,350,332 13.87%
T EEER (M 2)
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy Beneficial owner 297,000 0.02%

PRIEIZ/ME BEmEAA

Notes:

1. United Goal Resources Limited (“United Goal”) holds 540,000,000 shares.
United Goal is ultimately owned as to 80% by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
through Asia Prime Assets Limited (“Asia Prime”) and as to 20% by certain
family members of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, elder brother of Mr. Lau Luen Hung,
Thomas. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of shares in which United Goal is interested.

2. Dynamic Castle Limited (“Dynamic Castle”), which is wholly-owned by
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, holds 222,350,332 shares. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is deemed to be interested in the same parcel
of shares held by Dynamic Castle.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the directors or
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. None of the directors and chief
executive had any interest in, or had been granted any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or had exercised any such right during
the year under review.
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Interests of Shareholders Discloseable under the SFO
As at 31 December 2017, the following persons (other than a director or
the chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to
the Company:

BEEZRUESHRIBATHEZRRER
R-B—LF+-A=+—H TIAL(TRES
AR EFARETHAR) RARF 2B RAER
19 6P 157 1R 1 3B 2 I B K 1401 55 336 1A IE SR 4R
BEF2BETHALAGARDF 2R LA BRI
m

Long position in shares of the Company ERBRRBZHFR
Number of Percentage of
Name Nature of interest Shares held issued shares
HE#RTRMDZ
=L EEEE FERGEE Batt
United Goal Beneficial owner (Notes 1 and 2) 540,000,000 33.70%
EnBEBEA (M1 % 2)
Asia Prime Interest of controlled corporation (Notes 1 and 2) 540,000,000 33.70%
REHLEEER (1% 2)
Dynamic Castle Beneficial owner (Note 2) 222,350,332 13.87%
EnAA (M5 2)
Qatar Investment Authority Interest of controlled corporations (Note 3) 371,122,958 23.16%
Rz (N 3)
FMR LLC Investment manager 94,537,000 5.90%
WA
Notes: Bzt -
1. Asia Prime, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, holds 1. Asia Prime B & B8 &= 2 EHE A - HFF A United

80% of the entire issued share capital of United Goal. By virtue of the SFO,
Asia Prime is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares
comprising 540,000,000 shares in which United Goal is interested as beneficial
owner.

2. Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is a director of United Goal and is also the sole
director of Asia Prime and Dynamic Castle.

3. Bellshill Investment Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Qatar Holding
LLC, which in turn is wholly-owned by Qatar Investment Authority. By virtue
of the SFO, Qatar Holding LLC and Qatar Investment Authority are deemed
to be interested in the same parcel of shares comprising 371,122,958 shares
held by Bellshill Investment Company as beneficial owner.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any
person (other than a director or the chief executive of the Company) who
had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2017 which were recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to the
Company.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Goal 2 8P B B1TIR AN 2 80% © RIEFESH K EFEIEH] -
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
and Contracts

Save as disclosed under the section “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company or any entities connected with the director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

Lapse of Non-Competition Undertaking

In connection with the spin-off of the Group from Lifestyle International
Holdings Limited (“Lifestyle International”), the Company entered into a
deed of non-competition dated 24 June 2016 (“Non-Competition
Undertaking”) with Lifestyle Properties Development Limited (“Lifestyle
Properties”) (now known as Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.) to
provide undertakings on terms similar to those given by Lifestyle
International to Lifestyle Properties.

Upon the completion of disposal of shares in Lifestyle Properties by
Lifestyle International on 13 April 2017 (“Shares Disposal”), such
undertakings have lapsed automatically and ceased to have effect on the
Company immediately following the completion of the Shares Disposal.

Details of the lapse of the Non-Competition Undertakings are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 13 April 2017.

Continuing Connected Transactions

The following transactions constituted non-exempt continuing connected
transactions of the Company (“Continuing Connected Transactions”)
under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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1. Tenancy Agreements 1. HEWH=
Transaction Party Name of Annual caps amount Amount paid/payable
within the Group Counter Party Date of agreement ~ Terms Premises (RMB'000) for the year (RMB'000)
EEERZR RAYUFER iEgak 8 g EELRSE (ARETR) FREH/EREE(ARETT)
(i) Shanghai Ongoing FENBATESBBEAT  26November 2004 1 Qctober 2004 to Entire building of (8) Rental Fee: 168,000 (8) Rental Fee; 160,874
Department Store Limited ("Shanghai Joinbuy”), 33 30 September 2024 Shanghai Joinbuy fig: s
(*Shanghai Ongoing ), a company owned of t=A=trA ZZIMETA-BE CityPlaza (o) Management Fee: 45000 (b Management Fee: 39,171
a company owned of 50% by the Company ZZ-MEAAZTA (LBAEATES) ERE: ERE:
65% by the Company (Note 1) 2ig DEARAT
HEARBRERAR) LENBYTESERAR BEAE
(L&) *27 ((EBAE]) AAREE
B8 65% R A A 50% FRIENAR (i3E 1)
(i) Global Top Limited, Congenial Company 10 June 2016 1 June 2016 to Portion of 22nd Floor, 1209 10,074
awholly-owned Limited S 31 December 2018 East Point Centre,
subsidiary of the (Notes2and 3) ~ATH “E-~ERA-BE 555 Hennessy Road,
Company Congenial Company ZT-N\FFZRZT-B  CausewayBay,
tHERAR Limited Hong Kong
ARAMZENEAR (&2 R 3) EbiEe
§EsE 55
RARD
FpneEm
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2. Services Framework Agreement 2. RISERGE
Name of Annual caps amount Amount paid/payable
Transaction Party Counter Party Date of agreement ~ Terms Nature of transaction (RMB'000) for the year (RMB'000)
55 RAURER BERE 54 RAHE FELRSE(ARNTR) EFREH/BNLEARETR)
The Company Lifestyle Properties 6June 2016 14 July 2016 to Provision of non-exclusive 25,907 2795 (Note 5)
YN (Notes 2and 4) ZE-RERARE 31 December 2018 property project related B3k 5)
iz ZEELATREE services in respect of
(2 R4) “E-NETZA=T-8  property development
HAENFERL
FERMFRARR
RS
Notes: FitaE

Shanghai Ongoing is owed as to 5% by F/8 B (£E) GRAH
("Joinbuy Group”) and 30% by k& 7L & IR 1% & R 2 7 (“Joinbuy
Investment”). Joinbuy Group and Joinbuy Investment (whose
controlling shareholder is Joinbuy Group), being substantial
shareholders of Shanghai Ongoing, are connected persons of the
Company. As Shanghai Joinbuy is owned as to 12% by Joinbuy Group
and 38% by Joinbuy Investment. Shanghai Joinbuy is an associate of
Joinbuy Investment and a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

United Goal is one of the controlling shareholders of the Company
and Lifestyle International is owned as to 33.70% by United Goal.
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, an executive director of the Company,
ultimately owns 80% interest in United Goal through Asia Prime.
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas also either directly or through Dynamic
Castle owns another 17.99% interest in Lifestyle International. Hence,
Lifestyle International and its subsidiaries are associates of United
Goal and, therefore, connected persons of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Congenial Company Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lifestyle
International, and is therefore a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

Lifestyle Properties was a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Lifestyle
International, and was therefore a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Following the completion of the Shares
Disposal, Lifestyle Properties ceased to be a subsidiary of Lifestyle
International and ceased to be an associate of United Goal and hence
has ceased to be a connected person of the Company.

The amount paid by the Company in respect of the transactions
during the period from 1 January 2017 to the date of the completion
of the Shares Disposal.

Further details of the above transactions have been set out in the section
“Continuing Connected Transactions” in the listing document issued by
the Company dated 30 June 2016.

All the Continuing Connected Transactions above have been reviewed by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company who have
confirmed that for the year ended 31 December 2017, the Continuing

Connected

Transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and

usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms or

better; and (iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s
shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Notice 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

To the extent the transactions disclosed above which are also related
party transactions as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, these related party transactions constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and the Company has complied with the relevant
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.
Certain related party transactions in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements constituted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt
from shareholders’ approval and disclosure and other requirements.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

There was no competing business of which a director of the Company had
an interest which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules.

Change in Information of Directors
Below is the change in director’s information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
—  appointed as a member of the 13th Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Shanghai Committee

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.
There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the directors and officers of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company'’s
Securities
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or

redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2017.
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Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the basis of the
employees’ merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the
directors of the Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee,
with consideration to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

Employees

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a total of 1,371 employees,
with 1,301 stationed in mainland China and 70 in Hong Kong . Staff costs
(excluding directors’ emoluments), amounted to RMB169.3 million (2016:
RMB167.6 million) for the year. The Group ensures that the pay levels of
its employees are competitive and in line with market trend and its
employees are rewarded on a performance related basis within the
general framework of the Group's salary and bonus system.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s shares has
been held by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited by
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”). A resolution will be
submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
reappoint Deloitte as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

5 March 2018

FHEBOR

REEZ HEARIER 2 RR - AE RN TH
o ARREEZMENEHHERBEEEAD
RS R - ARIRA R LB TS B 1E iR s

—E—+F+-A=+—8 " AEBEHXER1,371
FHET  HA1301BHRPBE AN KER70EERE
B AFEBIRNTREESTHE) BARY
169,300,000 7T ( = Z — 75 F A K 167,600,000
TT) o AEERREEFHKEFAMISBE LA
FN RBEZFWDBREAEEZ —RF e R
SIEEERERBET -

RARNRERE
BIBAATMEZ AME R RIEERFAE - A
FEAH  ARALRIBAER ARG 2 25% -

B Em

AERFAMBHRRCERRBMNEY « WEKRT
FETETT ([RE) ) Bk - RORHR K RITZA
RBFRGREZEREDRARFREE I RER -

REEFE
215058
ERREBNTE
~Z-\F=A%A

MEFHEEEERAIE —T—tFFR



Independent Auditor’s Report
B BE R E

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LIFESTYLE CHINA GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lifestyle
China Group Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 60 to 134, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) %7 % BET3R & ()

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial

BARESSE
MsEs B ERERRMOE RN - RANKERS
BB RENEHRABENEE - ELFHELERMNE

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the S mcam i AREIESRE T B B B B ST RIE o BN

context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
BRETTER

e~ Aa

SHELEREHREBNER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BN ET N AHERETSEETERE

Share of profits and other comprehensive income of associates and interests in associates, in particular the 7 S 1L EIA

B £ BEEREE L F ("Beiren Group”)

B BELBERRAMEARZERNBEE R af#zE  LHRAKHFILEAANGEBEREFRR ([1XALEH])

We identified the Group's share of profits and other
comprehensive income of associates and interests in
associates, in particular the Beiren Group, as a key audit
matter due to their significance to the Group's profits for the
year and the Group's net assets.

HPERIE &R E RS N R R A B 2 e S gk
ERAMER FRRIEASBEREREEIFE AR
Y EREFANEMNN BSEEREFEEASZL -

As disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group's share of profits and other
comprehensive income of Beiren Group amounted to
approximately RMB287.9 million (2016: RMB313.9 million) for
the year ended 31 December 2017 and interests in associates
in respect of Beiren Group amounted to RMB3,065.0 million
(2016: RMB2,886.4 million) as at 31 December 2017.
BRI MRMT 16T HE - EEEEE_S—+F+=
A=+—BIEFEREZIEAEE M EEBE2ERZO/AR
287,900,000 (= ZF —734F : AR¥313,900,0007T) © MR =F
—tF+ A=+t -BEREAREAEBEARERASARK
3,065,000,000 7T (ZZF—7~4F « ARH2,886,400,0007T) °

Our procedures in relation to the Group's share of profits
and other comprehensive income of associates and
interests in associates in respect of the Beiren Group
included:

HMH EEENIEASERGHE QRGN RHE M2 RS
AR RRBEE AR R KB T B1F

o Identifying and assessing the risks of material
misstatement of the financial information of Beiren
Group, whether due to fraud or error and performing
audit procedures responsive to those risks;

i B RIRT ik AE A 58 B B 75 B KL A 17 72 BREF sl 8B AR
BEHHBEARERELR - A RENTT 57 R i B FE &Y
B

o Obtaining an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit of Beiren Group in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances;

THRERZI ASEEBORNEES - MR ESE
MEZIRF

o Obtaining sufficient audit evidence regarding the
financial information of Beiren Group as disclosed in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements;
MRS B mMERM T 16 MBI AR EH I ERERE
W BEZEE

° Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the management of Beiren Group and
assessing whether the accounting policies adopted
were in line with the accounting policy of the Group;
AL ASRBEEEERAHOS T BRAER NG
AR URFEMRANSTHRERLGE &5
) & SRR ARTT

o Checking the computation of the share of profits and
other comprehensive income of Beiren Group
prepared by the management; and
REEREREENEILASEREN RE M2 mP et
"BhE Rk

° Evaluating whether the Group's interests in associates

in respect of Beiren Group were properly accounted
for and appropriately disclosed in accordance with
the Hong Kong Accounting Standard ("HKAS") 28
(2011) "Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”
and HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities”.
HE EEERNIAEBEEGBEATNEEEAE Y
RIREEBGHER(HEGER )5 285% (2011 4F)
(M2 NRIRAELERE | REBTBREERE12
S [EE RS # R ] ARRRIEEERE -

MEFHEEEERAIE —T—tFFR



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) B % BT R & ()

Key audit matter
MsEEtER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMOETNAHERETZHETRE

Capitalisation and additions to construction in progress and properties under development

BAXERFEBZEETIERBERFIYFE

We identified the capitalisation and additions to construction
in progress (“CIP") and properties under development
("PUD") as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
Group's properties development projects.

MR BESEVEFREENEEM  RMBAIHERNME LT
ZERIR(EEIR]) RERTDE(TBRTYE])IERRBRE
BERERE-

As disclosed in notes 14 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, the capitalisation and additions to CIP and PUD
during the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to
approximately RMB414.7 million (2016: RMB331.0 million)
and RMB141.2 million (2016: RMB118.6 million), respectively.
The relevant accounting policies are set out in note 3 under
the headings of "Property, plant and equipment”,
"Properties under development” and “Borrowing costs” to
the consolidated financial statements.

MRS PR M T 14 R 18PIRE  BE - —+tF+ A
=t+—BIEFE BRI EERTRENERPYEDBIL
AR 414,700,0007T (ZF — /< 4F : AR 331,000,0007T) &
AER#141,200,0007T (ZF—7R4F - AR%118,600,0007T) © 1H
Be RN G M B MR TIME - BEREH] - [BR
mEI R MEERAK] -

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included

Our procedures in relation to capitalisation and additions to
CIP and PUD included:

B ENMe R EE AR TR RERTYERDNZFE1E

o Obtaining an understanding of the construction
progress of the Group's CIP and PUD projects by
interviewing the Group's project team and external
quantity surveyors;

Bl ESEBAEBEMINSIRBIER - TR &
SEERIRMERTPYEEENBIER

J Obtaining an understanding and evaluating the
internal control over the Group’s budgeting and
payments for the CIP and PUD projects;

TREME BERBEUERIEMERPYEEBNE
RIS A A BB

° Evaluating the appropriateness of the Group's
construction costs’ capitalisation policy by comparing it
against the accounting policies of “Property, plant and
equipment” and “Properties under development” as
disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, and the reasonableness of the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation against the accounting
policy of “Borrowing costs” as disclosed in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements; and
BBLEE BEBEEENANENMEBE KGR WHBR
RMFEIHWEN [ BEMRE] R[ERMWE] N
BHEEAHEEEE  URFEERNHEERRR
REPBMRMIIREN [EERA] OETEE - &7
HESEME &

o Checking, on a sample basis, the amounts of
additions and proper accruals with reference to the
contracts, contractors’ claim forms or invoices and
quantity surveyors' certificates in respect of the CIP
and PUD.

B EERERESEIEEEER 2564
AEEORERBEZALTZASMRAERTIERER
TYRBEHHEE

Hib &R
BAREFHEMANAR - KAENEHRNFR
RV - BT RIS M B HRER R B MR RE -

in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) %7 % BET3R & ()

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) B % BT R & ()

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) %7 % BET3R & ()

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lau King Pak.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
5 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HmeBEmkAEMEEHEER

for the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —tF+-A=+—HILEFE

2017 2016
—E—tHF A S
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
& ARET T AREFIT
(restated)
(&%)
Turnover BER 5 1,222,785 1,132,287
Cost of sales HEKA 5 (357,409) (311,279)
Gross profit e 865,376 821,008
Other income, gains and losses Hap g A~ Wz X e 6 75,480 114,424
Selling and distribution costs THE R SRR (576,606) (558,049)
Administrative expenses THRAX (99,564) (115,633)
Interest and investment income BRI E WA 7 52,806 44,162
Share of profit of a joint venture EE—REEECERF 17 37,451 34,224
Share of profits of associates JEAR BN BRI 16 289,272 314,338
Listing expenses Bileaba - (19,145)
Finance costs BE KA 8 (3,344) (11,649)
Profit before taxation B T B ES A 640,871 623,680
Taxation I 9 (156,345) (125,905)
Profit for the year REEZRF 10 484,526 497,775
Other comprehensive expense Efh 2 mEsz
[tems that may be reclassified BEE P REE T AR IE S
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIER
Exchange differences arising on BHEBINEISRES
translation of foreign operations ZIEN Z%8 (4,129) (18,967)
Other comprehensive expense for the year AREEEMEESH (4,129) (18,967)
Total comprehensive income for the year REEEHKZBEE 480,397 478,808
Profit for the year attributable to: REZ RN -
Owners of the Company NANTEER A 269,590 278,038
Non-controlling interests IEITE e o 214,936 219,737
484,526 497,775
Total comprehensive income attributable to:  fE{L 2 MU ZEARRE
Owners of the Company ViNNEIEZZE N 265,461 259,071
Non-controlling interests FEPEA R = 214,936 219,737
480,397 478,808
Earnings per share — basic BB T — FEA 13 RMBO0.168 RMB0.173

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2017



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R R R

at 31 December 2017 A =ZE—+F+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
NOTES RMB'000 RMB’000
P FE ARBTT ARETT
(restated)
(E51)
Non-current assets IERFEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BE MG 14 3,796,539 3,493,750
Prepaid lease payments TERFE I 15 2,290,740 2,356,515
Interests in associates REEE R A= 16 3,069,343 2,889,406
Interest in a joint venture N—EEEERERS 17 391,247 390,233
Properties under development BRPYE 18 924,368 783,126
Deferred tax assets TR IEE E 26 378 408
Other receivables H o e W ROE 20 127,684 -
10,600,299 9,913,438
Current assets MBEE
Inventories FE 19 42,555 35,565
Prepaid lease payments FERHEERIEA 15 65,775 65,775
Trade and other receivables JEUR BR 75 K E A E U SRR 20 172,836 142,688
Dividend receivable from an associate FEU — R B A FIIEE 2,465 90,753
Amount due from a joint venture FEU—fEEa B ERIA 21 30,000 30,026
Financial assets at fair value through AN EFFAEBEZ
profit or loss TREE 22 856,615 75,980
Bank balances and cash RITEEF RS 23 1,280,755 1,990,170
2,451,001 2,430,957
Current liabilities MEEE
Trade and other payables FEASBR FX N EAth FE S 5K TE 24 1,031,890 991,064
Amount due to a joint venture R —EE& A ERIE 21 44,836 48,475
Tax payable FEZTIE 56,905 53,229
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITEE — —FREH 25 5,000 141,646
1,138,631 1,234,414
Net current assets MEVEEFE 1,312,370 1,196,543
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTEEAE 11,912,669 11,109,981
FEPEEEERAT = +CFEFR



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued) #:4& B3k & (&)
at 31 December 20177 R =Z—+tF+_A=+—H

2017 2016
—Z—tF A S
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
BiaE AR®TT AREFIT
(restated)
(E51)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITEE — —F14 55 25 1,370,202 943,490
Deferred tax liabilities REFRITEAE 26 31,424 21,500
Amount due to a non-controlling FEASTBY BB A Rl — & FE4EAR
shareholder of subsidiaries P& 3R 2 I8 27 89,795 89,690
1,491,421 1,054,680
10,421,248 10,055,301
Capital and reserves BEAR R
Share capital B& X 28 6,884 6,884
Reserves & 9,059,969 8,794,508
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZNA GG AFE(G#ERS 9,066,853 8,801,392
Non-controlling interests B 1,354,395 1,253,909
10,421,248 10,055,301
The consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 134 were BFE 1M ELEATBREEEEeRN 22— \F=4

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 5
March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas %88 %4
DIRECTOR £ %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FReEmBEk

for the year ended 31 December 2017 HiZ - —tF+ - A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the

FARERARLESD
Statutory Non-
Share Share surplus Capital ~ Translation  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
EERE 2R
B BRHEE MEE  BARG  RERE  REER @5t i3 a3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETR
(note 29)
(Fzt 29)
At 1 January 2016 (restated) RZZ-7"E-A-HB(E3) - - 68317 - G274 154202 1559778 1119116 2478894
Profitfor the year KERRF - - - - - 2718038 278038 219737 497775
Other comprehensive expense FEREMREZH
for the year - - - - (18967) - (18.967) - (18.967)
Total comprehensive (expense) income RERRE () YHEE
for the year - - - - (18,967) 218038 259,071 29737 478,808
Capitalisation issue (note 28(d]) B BT (HE2) 6884 6940091 - - - - 694975 - 6946975
Deemed contribution from Lifestyle RAERIRER A (3)
International {note) - - - 35,568 - - 35,568 - 35,568
Dividend paid to non-controlling ERFERRFRNRS
shareholders - - - - - - - (84,944) (84,944
Transfer of reserves BEfHE - - 8,839 - - (8839) - - -
At 31 December 2016 (restated) RZE-~E+ZA=1-A
(&5) 6884 6940091 771,15 35,568 (111,708) 1853401 8,801,392 1253909 10,055,301
Proftor the year KERER - - - - - 29590 269590 21493 484526
Other comprehensive expense FEREMLETH
for the year - - - - (4,129) - (4,129) - (4,129)
Total comprehensive [expense)income A E 2T (X ) REEE
for the year - - - - (4,129) 269,590 265,461 214,936 480,397
Dividend paid to non-controlling ERFBREREARE
shareholders - - - - - - - (1144500 (114,450)
Transfer of reserves BEGRE - - 23,758 - - (23,758) - - -
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+ZA=+-A 6,884 6,940,091 100,914 35,568 (115,837) 2,099,233 9,066,853 1,354,395 10,421,248

Note: Prior to the listing, certain loan interest payables were waived by Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited (“Lifestyle International”), a former
holding company of Lifestyle China Group Limited (the “Company”), and
not recharged to the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “the Group”). The amounts were recognised as deemed

contribution from Lifestyle International.

FeE :

BEIFEE -

MLEMR FEhEEEARAR(ARE]) /AT
BARFEEREEERAR(TFRER]D#BEAR
AEESTENERNS TEHEZETARTRAR
BB A E (S [ A RE])
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEHERER

for the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —tF+-A=+—HILEFE

2017 2016
—Z2—+tF A S
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARBFT
(restated)
(&%)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Profit before taxation Nzl 640,871 623,680
Adjustments for: IEAEHIA TR -
Interest income on bank deposits RITFR 2 FEIA (18,653) (38,811)
Investment income from financial assets at fair BAFESABGZZ SRIEEMNIREIRA
value through profit or loss (22,676) (2,592)
Other interest income HAbFBUA (4,256) (3,337)
Dividend income from financial assets at fair BAFEFAEBREZ
value through profit or loss TREENREMA (1,645) (121)
Net change in fair value of financial assets at BATESABR 2/
fair value through profit or loss BENTEZEFHE (5,576) 699
Finance costs [ELE- 1N 3,344 11,649
Unrealised exchange loss R IRIE 18K 36,721 9.125
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment YE - R NMREBITE 114,024 112,313
Release of prepaid lease payments TERTHEHIEE 17,193 17,193
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, HEMBWE  WEREEZ
plant and equipment B 484 61
Share of profit of a joint venture Bl —EaEEERT (37,451) (34,224)
Share of profits of associates JEARE & N Al A (289,272) (314,338)
Gain on deemed disposal of interests in RAE & — R & A Al A e
an associate (11,297) -
Write-down of obsolete inventories 7 ST B R - 52
Impairment of other receivables e IE R (B 11,130 11,123
Operating cash flows before movements in EEASEIHAIKERE
working capital mE 432,941 392,472
Increase in inventories FEEN (6,990) (1,831)
Increase in properties under development BRAYZEIL I (114,529) (75,357)
Increase in trade and other receivables JE LA B 3R K L A I LA SR IB 2 D (36,651) (11,386)
Decrease in amount due from a fellow subsidiary e — RS R 2R B B A Al sk I8 - 56
(Decrease) increase in amount due to a joint venture [EfF—fAEMEIE (Ol ) 0 (4,674) 12,902
Decrease in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FET R Z MY B A B kIR - (143,416)
Increase in trade and other payables JE {5F BR 7K Kz L i JRE A BRIB S N 11,467 109,381
Cash generated from operations IR SIH S 281,564 282,821
Interest received 2 H & 19,080 39,685
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EEENEN (2,117) (2,744)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB EMEH (140,589) (111,809)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXBBRESTHE 157,938 207,953
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) #&R&HE X ()
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE =T —tF+ - A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTFT
(restated)
(&%)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH

Dividend received from an associate H—REE N T 2 B WAL S 208,920 46,212
Dividend received from a joint venture R—EeELEZBERRE 36,437 33,194
Interest received from a joint venture H—HEEELEZBEWFE 1,064 1,410
Interest received 2 UF 8 2,835 1,588

Dividend received from financial assets at fair RN TER ABE@m L

value through profit or loss SRAEZCHRE 1,645 121
Investment income received from financial WIRAFEFABE 2SR/

assets at fair value through profit or loss BEZERIEERA 19,040 2,275
Advance to employees of an associate I — B A T B THBK (127,684) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEMZE - BEKEE (316,147) (262,458)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HERATERT ABR

fair value through profit or loss Z EBAEPTFK 5,531,900 174,000
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through BEEAFEFARSZ

profit or loss SRAE (6,310,311) (250,711)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME - BB KRBTSR

equipment 74 1,245
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFEDFRARSFHE (952,227) (253,124)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES Rl E R
Advance from fellow subsidiaries RER XM B R BRI - 12,375
New bank borrowings raised MERTEER 431,712 352,090
Repayment of bank borrowings BRRTEE (141,646) (149,644)
Advance from non-controlling shareholders TR R B 105 -
Repayment to non-controlling shareholders FEPERRAR R VR R - (21,120)
Interest paid BEXRIAE (53,448) (48,928)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders BRI 48 FEIE AR AR R AR 2. (114,450) (84,944)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEDAEREFH 122,273 59,829
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND RERBESEEY (BD)

CASH EQUIVALENTS 1 pn R (672,016) 14,658
Effect of foreign exchange rate difference MERER TR (37,399) 33,169
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING FHNRERBRESEEY

OF THE YEAR 1,990,170 1,942,343
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FRESRBRSEEY

THE YEAR 1,280,755 1,990,170
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERREEEN 2N

Bank balances and cash RITIEE MRS 1,280,755 1,990,170
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —tF+-A=+—HILEFE

1.

General, Reorganisation and Basis of
Presentation of Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law in the Cayman Islands
on 4 January 2016 and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 15
July 2016 ("Listing”).

In the opinion of directors of the Company, the Company's
ultimate controlling party is Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, who is
also an executive director of the Company.

The addresses of the office and the principal place of business
of the Company are set out in the section headed "Corporate
Information” to the annual report. The Company acts as an
investment holding company and the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are the operation of “Jiuguang” department stores
and related retailing business in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") and restaurant business.

In preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange and pursuant to the reorganisation
("Reorganisation”) as set out in the section headed
“Reorganisation” to the Company’s listing document dated 30
June 2016, the Company since 23 June 2016 has become the
holding company of the companies now comprising the Group.

Change in presentation currency and restatement of
comparative consolidated financial statements

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi ("RMB").
The presentation currency of the consolidated financial
statements in prior financial years was Hong Kong Dollar
("HK$"). Starting from 1 January 2017, the Group has changed
its presentation currency for the preparation of its consolidated
financial statements from HK$ to RMB. The directors of the
Company consider that it is more appropriate to use RMB as the
presentation currency in presenting the operating results and
financial positions of the Group as majority of the Group's
revenue and business activities are primarily denominated in
RMB and conducted in the Mainland China and in view of the
fluctuation of the exchange rate of RMB against HK$, the
directors of the Company consider that the change in
presentation currency from HK$ to RMB would help to eliminate
fluctuation on the reported results caused by changes in
exchange rate which otherwise do not have any direct relevance
to the Group’s operating performance. This will enable
shareholders of the Company to better understand the
underlying financial performance of the Group. Accordingly,
comparative figures of the consolidated financial statements
were restated in RMB.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

AN REETERMBREER

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2.

Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to
HKFRS 12

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative”

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments
also require disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash
flows from those financial assets were, or future cash flows will
be, included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates;
(iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
these items is provided in note 34. Consistent with the transition
provisions of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the prior year. Apart from the
additional disclosure in note 34, the application of these
amendments has had no impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2.
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

Except for the early application of HKFRS 9 issued in November
2009 and revised in October 2010 as denoted below, the Group
has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs that

R REIETERM B REEA
(TEBMBREERA]) (&)

EHEMERERZH T REBTNE B ER
HZEA

BREFEAR-_ZTAET —ARGIRN-F—
TEFABIIZ BB BHMEENE ISR (A TH
FEFTAL) SN - AERE Y BB R AT BGERKE

have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40
Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments?

Leases®

Insurance Contracts®

Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments®

Classification and Measurement of
Share-Based Payment Transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” with HKFRS 4
“Insurance Contracts"?

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Long-term interests in associates and
joint ventures®

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle?

Transfers of Investment Property?
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

1

The Group has early applied HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009
and revised in October 2010 regarding classification and
measurement of financial assets and disclosure requirements. The
Group has not yet early applied a revised version of HKFRS 9
issued in September 2014 which deals with classification and
measurement, general hedge accounting and impairment which
is mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and
interpretations mentioned below, the directors of the Company

anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs and interpretations will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 was amended in 2013 to include the new requirements
for general hedge accounting. A revised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements for
financial assets and b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a “fair value
through other comprehensive income” ("FVTOCI")
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group
are:

o Certain financial assets held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets should be measured
at FVTOCI (unless designated at fair value through profit
and loss ("FVTPL") to eliminate or significantly reduce a
measurement mismatch). This applies to assets passing
the contractual cash flow characteristics assessment (which
is the same test used to determine whether financial
assets are measured at amortised cost). Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment gains
and losses shall be recognised in profit or loss with all
other gains or losses (i.e. the difference between those
items and the total change in fair value) being recognised
in other comprehensive income. Any cumulative gain or
loss recorded in other comprehensive income would be
reclassified to profit and loss on derecognition, or
potentially earlier if the asset is reclassified because of a
change in business model. Interest income and
impairment gains and losses would be recognised and
measured in the same manner as for assets measured at
amortised cost such that the amounts in other
comprehensive income represent the difference between
the amortised cost value and fair value. These results in
the same information in profit or loss as if the asset was
measured at amortised cost, yet the consolidated
statement of financial position would reflect the
instrument’s fair value.

° In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, the directors of
the Company anticipate the following potential impact on initial
application of HKFRS 9:

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group's financial assets measured at
amortised costs that are subject to the impairment provisions
upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if the
expected credit loss model were to be applied by the Group,
the accumulated amount of impairment loss to be recognised
by Group as at 1 January 2018 would be slightly increased as
compared to the accumulated amount recognised under HKAS
39 mainly attributable to expected credit losses provision on
trade receivables. Such further impairment recognised under
the expected credit loss model would reduce the opening
retained profits at 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”,
HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation
to the identification of performance obligations, principal versus
agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company have assessed the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future that may result in more disclosures and
have an impact on the presentation of, and accounting for,
revenue generated from certain services to suppliers that will be
accounted for as a deduction of purchase cost upon application
of HKFRS 15. Except for the impact mentioned above, they do
not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a
material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised in the respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17
“Leases” and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands
for owned use while other operating lease payments are
presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS
16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be presented
as financing cash flows by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee.
The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in
classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line
item at which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB1,011,042,000 (2016:
RMB1,146,284,000) as disclosed in note 30. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or
short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of RMB1,638,000 and refundable rental deposits
received of RMB56,241,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of
lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying assets,
accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may be
adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments are considered
as additional lease payments. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be included in the carrying amount of right-
of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits
received would be considered as advance lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B#5R &M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for the financial assets at FVTPL
that are measured at fair values at the end of the reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 "“Share-Based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

J Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #3487 3R KK =E (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2017 = —%
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Merger accounting for business combination involving
businesses under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements items of the combining businesses in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had been
combined from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining businesses are consolidated
using the existing book values from the controlling party’s
perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or
bargain purchase gain at the time of common control
combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Merger accounting for business combination involving
businesses under common control (continued)

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining businesses from the earliest date presented or since
the date when the combining businesses first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the businesses had been
combined at the end of the previous reporting period or when
they first came under common control, whichever is shorter.

Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and a joint
venture are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates and a joint venture used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. Changes in net assets of the associate and joint venture
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group's share
of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's
interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments in associates and a joint venture (continued)
An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group's investment in an associate or a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised in
the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related
to the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries presented in the statement of
financial position included in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements are stated at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

3.

TESHBE(E)
REELARR-—BeELX2RE (H)
R—EBERRR—HaELE 2 RERERS
FOEANER  BREERE LKA BB E AR
HARECEMIG ERE ML AR —HA
AER - EARBRAE DA SEEETIRE
AABAEERBEZ AT FEZERERRDE
B YEBRHERENEREEET - AEEEMN
ARMNEERAEFAVEBLEERAZ EM
ZH EEMAHRAERINZREREFE
Z B e

EEGREMEIVRZRATEANEETALRE
HRAEEN-—HBEARL—HAELEZRE
REFERE - ERE  REZZ2HEEE (R
EEB)REBEEEGERSE36R [BERME] F
RE-EEETRENR  DEABTTIRE SR
(A AEBEEAATERBERNAZRSE) Hik
EEFLE - DB ZREBKKERTE
Z— 8 e MERKREZ KB SEE N AR
BEBETERE G RERZREZ BED -

I AREBE T EREALE —HEE DA% —
MaBLEETRS  MIAAKEBERARARE
B BAKEBBNEDRSRNGEMBR
RPHEREE -

RMBARZRE

RTER B 2R ERKARER D HERERBR
RUBHRRE 2 R BEEGE VB RER 2T
39

MEFHEEEERAIE —T—tFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B#5R &M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has been passed.

Income from concessionaire sales is recognised upon sales of
goods by the relevant shops based on certain percentage of
turnover in accordance with the terms of contracts. When the
concessionaires fail to meet the minimum guarantee income in
accordance with the terms of contracts, the relevant shops are
required to pay the minimum guarantee amount and hence the
minimum guarantee amount is recognised as income at that
time.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Interest income from a financial asset including financial assets
at FVTPL is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Rental income is recognised according to the accounting policy
set out under the heading of “Leasing” below.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such properties
are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than construction in progress) less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

When buildings are in the course of development for production
or for administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease
payments provided during the construction period is included
as part of costs of buildings under construction. Buildings under
construction are carried at cost, less any identified impairment
losses. Depreciation of buildings commences when they are
available for use (i.e. when they are in the location and condition
necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management).

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. The cost comprises prepaid lease
payments, development and construction expenditure,
borrowing costs capitalised and other direct costs attributable
to the development. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price at which the property can be realised less related
expenses.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an income in the period in which they
are incurred.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire property is accounted as an operating
lease. Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as
an operating lease is presented as "prepaid lease payments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and
building elements, the entire property is generally classified as if
the leasehold land is under finance lease.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss
for the period except for exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
expense, in which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive expense.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangements, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average
method. Management of the Group periodically reviews
inventories for slow moving, obsolescence or declines in market
value.

This review requires the management of the Group to estimate
the net realisable value based upon assumptions about future
demand and market conditions. If the estimate of net realisable
value is below the cost of inventories, the Group will record a
write-down of inventories for the difference between cost and
net realisable value, which will result in a corresponding increase
in cost of sales.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation

or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairment loss
(except for debt investments that are designated as at FVTPL on

initial recognition):

J the asset is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on

specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair

value.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in
the “Interest and investment income” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Investments in equity instruments are classified as FVTPL, unless
the Group designates an investment that is not held for trading
as at FVTOCI on initial recognition. The Group has not
designated investments in equity securities as at FVTOCI.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria
(see above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt
instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria but are
designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL. A debt
instrument may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains
and losses on them on different bases.

Debt instruments are reclassified from amortised cost to FVTPL
when the business model is changed such that the amortised
cost criteria are no longer met. Reclassification of debt
instruments that are designated as FVTPL on initial recognition
is not allowed.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss is included in the “Interest and
investment income” line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on these financial assets.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

J significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or
° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables and other receivables, they are assessed for
impairment individually. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 30 days, as well as observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly with the exception of trade receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, trade and other
payables, amount due to a joint venture and amount due to a
non-controlling shareholder of subsidiaries are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset or cash generating unit for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment losses on tangible assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less costs of disposal, its value in use and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Other government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2017, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised on the tax losses of approximately RMB609.4 million
(2016: RMB496.8 million), due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The realisation of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future assessable profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the estimated future assessable profits or taxable
temporary difference are more than previously estimated, a
material recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which the
revised estimate takes place.

Estimated impairment of interests in associates and a
joint venture

In determining whether there is an impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows to
be generated by its associates and joint venture. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the interests in associates and joint venture
and the share of the present value of estimated future cash flows
expected to be generated by the associates and joint venture.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group's interests in associates and
interest in a joint venture were RMB3,069.3 million (2016:
RMB2,889.4 million) and RMB391.2 million (2016: RMB390.2
million) respectively. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

5. Turnover and Segment Information 5. EXBERITER
Turnover represents the amount received and receivable for EEBREAEEFARMINMERPELERZE
goods sold by the Group to external customers, net of discounts Wt K% JE M R TR BT 0 B SH S AR AT TR © SR B AR ET
and sales related taxes, income from concessionaire sales, EEBEERA - RFBRAARBESUWA » LD
service income and rental income during the year, and is NN

analysed as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tHF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T AREFIT
(restated)
(&%)
Sales of goods — direct sales EoiNE —HiENE 439,427 380,827
Income from concessionaire sales REFFEREEE Z WA 666,143 631,437
Service income BRASUZ A 36,188 37,387
Rental income WA 81,027 82,636
1,222,785 1,132,287
The cost of sales are analysed as follows: SHERARDMTLT -
Cost of goods sold — direct sales EREERAN — HiEEE 297,969 251,968
Other cost of sales HiEERAN 59,440 59,311
357,409 311,279
The Group has no customers that contributed over 10% of the REEREF  AKREVEZFEMBARNER
total turnover of the Group for both years. SRR Z210% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
Segment information

The Group's operating activities are attributable to a single
operating segment focusing on operation of department stores,
retailing and related business. This operating segment has been
identified on the basis of internal management reports prepared
in accordance with accounting policies conform to HKFRSs, that
are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker
("CODM?") (i.e. the chief executive of the Company). The CODM
regularly reviews revenue analysis by location. Other than
revenue analysis, no operating results and other discrete
financial information is available for the assessment of
performance of the respective locations.

The CODM reviews the profit for the year of the Group as a
whole to make decisions about resource allocation. The
operation of the Group constitutes one single operating
segment under HKFRS 8 "Operating segments” and accordingly
no separate segment information other than entity-wide
information is presented.

Geographical information
Analysis of the Group's turnover and non-current assets by

EXRERDIBEH (R)

2 RPE R

AEENEEEBTHIILEREE  TERE

MEBHE—RE20H

a1
%%E.D A

BHETT © 1t

BIyR 4%

HEEBYBHREEN NG RRREE - A
BREEREAN(TEREEREAN]D AIAATT
BB E RN E R EREETHR - &
JE R BN E HIR R R W ER o AT o BRIl
DITIN - WEAS S S T H A B S B T B R AT

FR{ERFZ &R Y

R e

TEREARAEHNAREERFRGN - JAME
HEBERDERE - AREERBHEERHRELE

B85 [ E DT

BRIt 3 R A L B8

h & & R

Bl FRIEZ B—#8E 0 EbAERK -

BEASNOE R D B EFL o

BEEMENREID cAREEEENERDE

geographical location are detailed below: EommT :
Turnover =E 20
2017 2016
—T—tF —T-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETFIT
(Restated)
(E51)
Hong Kong oS> 59,258 58,120
PRC =8 1,163,527 1,074,167
1,222,785 1,132,287
Non-current assets (note) FRBEE (KiEE)
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT
(Restated)
(E%1))
Hong Kong EB 1,165 1,804
PRC =8 7,138,166 6,631,587
7,139,331 6,633,391

Note: Non-current assets excluded interests in associates, interest in a
joint venture and deferred tax assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

Other Income, Gains and Losses

6. EHAWA - BWERER

2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RE
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT
(Restated)
(&251)
Management fee income BEREBEWA 49,674 50,311
Project income HB KA 2,283 3,422
Government subsidies (note a) BB (MEEa) 8,803 2,504
Net exchange (loss) gain FIEN, (E51E) W (36,556) 26,041
Credit card recharges EAREREN 24,308 22,597
Income from suppliers and lessees 2R B e KA A BRI 9,865 9,489
Overprovision on compensation for HREFERIENHEZ BLEE
early termination of counters 4,744 -
Impairment of other receivables (note 20) Hup e soRE (st 20) (11,130) (11,123)
Gain on deemed disposal of interests in RIEL B E A Rl 2 W
an associate (note b) (Mt b) 11,297 —
Others HAtb 12,192 11,183
75,480 114,424
Notes: ks
(a) The amount represents government subsidies received from the (a) ZEBERETRIFERG THBAHE - AR

PRC local authorities for subsidising its operational activities and
promotional activities conducted by the Group. All of them had

no specific condition attached.

SEETHEEREDREEHRETE - TAMED
I AR BB ANfERA

(b) A gain on deemed disposal of interests in an associate of (b) HE-_Z—+tF+-_A=+—RHLFECHERSE
RMB11,297,000 was recognised during the year ended 31 EBER A N TR B Uk 25 A R 511,297,000 7T
December 2017 to account for the change in the Group's direct LAGT R AN B A B & A B L B RS 3 A% 10 B PR /A &)
equity interest in its associate, b EIRAR D AR A F] (“Beiguo”), (THEE ) ME A B8R B BITHRMD A S B A&
which was resulted from the issue of new shares to certain eligible BB 2 S HIR 2 8 - ZRIEREFHBE
employees. Details of the deemed disposal are set out in note HTEE 16(b) °
16(b).

Interest and Investment Income 7. FIERREWA

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFT
(Restated)
(E31))
Interest income on bank deposits RITIFRZFBMA 18,653 38,811
Net changes in fair value of financial BATEFAEBRZZ CRMEER
assets at FVTPL NEEEE)FRE 5,576 (699)
Dividend income from financial BAFEFABRZCREERN
assets at FVTPL A& BUA 1,645 121
Investment income from financial BAFEFAEBRcemEES
assets at FVTPL & WA 22,676 2,592
Other interest income HAanF] B UA 4,256 3,337
52,806 44,162
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B#5R &M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

8. Finance Costs 8. mMEMK
2017 2016
—e—tf | —TAf
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
(Restated)
(&%)
Interests on: ATIER 2 FI8 -
Bank borrowings RITIEE - 53,969 48,677
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries BB E NGBS - 66,457
53,969 115,134
Less: Amounts capitalised in construction o RERIRERERPYEEARL
in progress and properties under -t
development (50,625) (103,485)
3,344 11,649

The capitalised borrowing costs represent the borrowing costs
incurred by a subsidiary on borrowings whose funds were

specifically invested in the construction in progress and

properties under development during the year.

9. Taxation

ERCEERARIEMN B QAR FRNIRERER
TREMBERTYENTRESAEENEERRE -

9. I\
2017 2016
—E—+F ZERE
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETF T
The tax charge comprises: MIEZEBETSIER : (Restated)
(251)
Current tax: AEAREIA -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BABENGEH 2,200 2,207
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R ERTISH 119,582 101,625
Withholding tax A 24,615 21,341
146,397 125,173
Under (over) provision in prior years: BEFENRCGEZ) BE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBMNEH (17) (17)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RIS 40 (119)
23 (136)
Deferred tax charge (note 26) IREFLTE T (B 5 26) 9,925 868
156,345 125,905
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

Taxation (continued)

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax provided in the
consolidated financial statements is calculated at 16.5% of the
assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax at the rate of 5% or 10% is
imposed on dividends in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture and at the rate of 7%
on interest income from PRC subsidiaries.

No provision for taxation in other jurisdictions has been made as
the Group has no assessable taxable profits arising from
operations outside Hong Kong and PRC.

Tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

BiE (&)
RNEEREFZEBFESRAR MG ERTEF
2 16.5% B RAEH B4E -

REPEEEMEIOE(REMBIOR]D) MEE
FRSBUAB MRS - o BIE A BMH R R25% -

BRIBEEMEDUE  RHEMBAR - BEQF
K — A& & 1 5 P R EUR F 69 AR BIR B R 5% 3
10% ERUMRTAFNR - 30 54 7 BT & B A LB A
TR 7% TR0 RL ©

AEBEWEAREELPEUNINEMRNEEERD
EBELERVOEN - AW EAER TR -

AEEBBAXBEFGSER R EMEE RS R
RERBRADE N 2 SR T

2017 2016

—Z2—+tF ZE—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFT ARBFT

(Restated)

(E5)

Profit before taxation BT B A 640,871 623,680

Tax at applicable income tax rate of 25% LRSHE 25% stE 2 Bi1A 160,218 155,920

Tax effect of share of profit of a joint venture {5k —FEAELERH 2 AR E (9,363) (8,556)

Tax effect of share of profits of associates FE(RESE & A RN 2 THIE o2& (72,318) (78,585)
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERBMWA 2 FHRIBFE

tax purpose (12,286) (13,120)
Tax effect of expense not deductible for PR 2 BB 2

tax purpose 26,173 14,492

Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses AT A ARERRIBEEZ

previously not recognised BiIRF & - (76)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERRIBEB 2 RIETE 30,501 36,247
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries FHMREEERERLE

operating in other jurisdictions /B A R RI R 2R 2 Bl TE 4 (1,142) (1,112)

Under (over) provision in prior years BEFETRE (B%) BE 23 (136)

Withholding tax TEEL 34,539 20,833

Others HAb - )

Tax charge for the year AEEHIEZ L 156,345 125,905
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B#5R &M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

10. Profit for the year

10. NEEimF

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit for the year has been arrived at after REZHFMEMBR (GTA)
charging (crediting): THER -
Directors’ remuneration (note 11): EEME - (HFE11)
Fees 1w 694 356
Other emoluments o Ath 37 B 6,259 3,144
Bonus ?E,Z 8,481 6,014
Retirement benefits schemes contributions ROREFIFT SR 16 8
15,450 9,522
Other staff costs, excluding retirement benefits FRIRIRTEFIFTEIINZ
schemes contributions HiB T 161,636 159,985
Retirement benefits schemes contributions IRIRFEFIGT B 7,655 7,588
169,291 167,573
Total staff costs BB TR 184,741 177,095
Release of prepaid lease payments BN EZIEE 65,775 65,775
Less: Amount capitalised in construction BRI CERNM SR
in progress (note 14) (BdsE 14) (48,582) (48,582)
17,193 17,193
Auditor’'s remuneration BN & 2,682 2,869
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% M= MREZITE 114,024 112,313
Impairment of other receivables Ho b e W AR FORE 11,130 11,123
Write-off of obsolete inventories T SETT B MR - 52
Rental payments paid under operating lease in L&A THE Lt RIEF
respect of leasehold land and buildings to MU TATZHZHERIE
— ajoint venture — —RHEERrE 160,874 159,096
— other parties Hip A+ 18,729 18,836
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, Hj%/{hﬂﬂﬂ%% W= N R 2 B8
plant and equipment 484 61
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense &R A H 2 FEK A 297,969 251,968
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #3487 3R KK =E (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

11. Directors’, Chief Executive’'s and Employees’

Remuneration

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas and Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy were
appointed as the directors of the Company on 4 January 2016
and 17 March 2016, respectively, and were re-designated as
executive director and non-executive director on 28 June 2016
and 24 June 2016, respectively. The independent non-executive
directors of the Company were appointed on 24 June 2016.
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

1. EF - THARREEME

HEBEERRER L LD RN T —RF—H
MAR-—ZE-R"EZATLtABZEARRAE
2 YR _E-RERAA+TNBR-F
—RNERAZTHBERERATERLIFRTE
Fo ARABUFATEENR T —RFXH
“HHBREEE - REBEEAN ETRAEEER
AEAIREN RN FEERE RITRASMSMT

2017 —=—+tF
Non-
Executive Executive Independent
Director Director Non-Executive Directors
HITES  FETEES BYFYTES
Lau Chan Cheung
Luen Hung, Chor Ling, Lam Yuet Man, Cheung
Thomas* Amy  Kwong Wai Raymond Mei Han Total
by 3357 %0 R RER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T ARETR AR®TR ARETR ARET T
Fees ik 174 130 130 130 130 694
Other emoluments HivBie
Salaries and other benefits Fe L EMERN 6,259 - - - - 6,259
Bonus* TEAL* 8,481 - - - - 8,481
Contributions to retirement  E/REFFT 24
benefits schemes 16 - - - - 16
Total emoluments [t 14,930 130 130 130 130 15,450
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B#5R &M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

11. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and Employees’ 1. ES - THEBREEMS (&)
Remuneration (continued)

2016 —EB-AF
Non-
Executive Executive Independent
Director Director Non-Executive Directors
WTEE  FHITER BUFHTES
Lau Chan Cheung
Luen Hung, Chor Ling, Lam Yuet Man, Cheung
Thomas * Amy Kwong Wai Raymond Mei Han Total
Bl ¢ R MA R X REMH st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARBETr ARETT AR®TT  ARETR
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(E%)) (&%) (&%) (&%) (&E%)) (E%))

Fees e 88 67 67 67 67 356
Other emoluments HitBe
Salaries and other benefits FeREMER 3,144 - - - - 3,144
Bonus* b2 A 6,014 - - - - 6,014
Contributions to retirement  R{KEHFT I
benefits schemes 8 - - - 8
Total emoluments Hewm 9,254 67 67 67 67 9,522
* The bonus is determined having regard to the Group's and the * AR R EAEE RN TESESEER
executive director’s performance for each of the reporting period. LEIMRIBMEBT o
¥ Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, is also the chief executive of the # BB K A TR R BIRITIRAES, -
Company.
The executive director's emoluments shown above were for his N EREATHREAZAARRAEBREEHE
services as the chief executive in connection with the REREZHITEEHE -

management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive director’'s and independent non-executive Miﬁﬁ/\\\K%\ET}F%%E§$_H§E@3WM'}§$
directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as RENFATEEMS -

directors of the Company.
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11. Directors’, Chief Executive’'s and Employees’

Remuneration (continued)

During both years, no remuneration was paid by the Group to
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors has waived any remuneration during both years. Of the
five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017, one of them (2016: one) was a director of the
Company whose remuneration is disclosed above and the
remaining four (2016: four) are employees of the Group, details
of whose remuneration were as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

11.

B THRAZREEMSE (B)

REEREFAN  AEBLBAARREETZ(N
B - ARSIREMAREBSIERMAREE
ZRSABEBHE ROFREFR REES
MEAMNMNMSE B#E-_T—tF+-_A=1+—8
FFE AEERERSHFALH —R(ZF
—RF B RARTEFR - W2 MER £
B SmE(—E—RF: WR) AKREEE
8 WEZMESFHFBHIIWT

2017 2016
—F—tfF | T AF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARBFT
(Restated)
(&)

Employees: EE :
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e - RRE R EMETR] 4,245 1,925
Retirement benefits schemes contributions BRIKEFFT IR 62 105
Performance related incentive payments ERRINE NS 2,261 1,515
6,568 3,545

The number of the five highest paid individuals of the Group
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follow:

KREBRERDHFALZHMNFIATHE :

2017 2016

—E—+F ZE—RF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A N

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7&JT = 1,000,000 7T - 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 77T = 1,500,000 7T 2 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 & JTZE 2,500,000 BT 1 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 & T 3,000,000 BT 1 -
HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000 10,500,001 /&7 = 11,000,000 77T - 1
HK$17,000,001 to HK$17,500,000 17,000,001 7872 17,500,000 77T 1 -

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the four highest paid
employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

Prior to the listing of the Company, on 15 July 2016, a subsidiary
of Lifestyle International recharged all the directors’
remuneration to the Group through “consultancy fee to a
subsidiary of Lifestyle International” as further disclosed in note
36(a)(vii).

KBt FR-E—AF+-A=+—ALF
R AEELEANLRSHRE LM
R3S AR E B A MAREE Y 25
SRR -

R-Z—XELA+HEBARXR LA FiEEH
Bz —EWBAGSEGE X FF R —rEk
BRARAIZEME] BEZHMNTAREE - F15
B RE 36(a)(vii) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B#5R &M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

12. Dividend 12. RE

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:

HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE A1 7
WA mEBRRES RIS EMBRE(ZF

nil), nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the —NEE ) o
reporting period.
13. Earnings Per Share 13. BREF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to RRARIER ANEIEFIRERR A RT3 8UEET
the owners of the Company is based on the following data: HEH
2017 2016
—E—tF “TRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT AR¥ETT
(Restated)
(&%)
Earnings R
Profit for the year attributable to the owners of FAETEGREARZFIME 2
the Company for the purpose of PN/ 2N X )
basic earnings per share INEEE % F 269,590 278,038
2017 2016
—E—tF —F-R
‘000 ‘000
TR TAX
Number of shares BROEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ BiatE GRREARF|
for the purpose of basic earnings per share hnHE e m AL S B
(note) (BfF5E) 1,602,587 1,602,587

Diluted earnings per share are not presented as there were no
potential ordinary shares in issue during both years.

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year
ended 31 December 2016 for the purpose of basic earnings per
share has been taken into account the shares issued pursuant to
the Reorganisation and the capitalisation issue of 1,602,586,440
ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each of the Company at par value on
11 July 2016 as stated in note 28(d) as if it had been effective on 1
January 2016.
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

14. Y% BERRE

Furniture, Construction
Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor in
Buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles progress Total
RENE BER  BA B
BF %6 WE  RERRHE RE EEIR i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTL ARETTL ARETT ARETTL ARETT AREFTL AREFTL
COsT 73
At 1 January 2016 (restated) R-2-7~E-A-0 (B} 2,244,100 727,384 156,398 61,257 6,235 1,062,823 4258197
Exchange adjustment AR - 654 220 265 - 4515 5,654
Additions NE 159 139 37 1317 - 331,034 334,466
Disposal/write-off HE/HilK (69.373) - (46d) (1.171) - - (71,008)
At31 December 2016 restated) ~ RZE—7F+-A=+—H
(&) 2,176,326 728,177 156,531 61,668 6,235 1,398,372 4,527,309
Exchange adjustment AR - (833) o) (335) - - (1,445)
Additions AE - 135 126 1,158 774 414,686 17479
Disposal/write-off HE/Hisk (1,383) - ) (365) - - (1,797)
At 31 December 2017 R=F-+F+-A=1-R 2,174,943 727479 156,931 62,126 7,009 1,813,058 4941546
DEPRECIATION &
At 1 January 2016 (restated) R-ZE-7~E-A-0 (B} 310,579 493,636 68,345 45312 3,561 - 921,493
Exchange adjustment B A% - 62 20 209 - - 1,035
Provided for the year ERIE 58,295 43,032 7774 2689 523 - 112,313
Eliminated on disposal/write-off &R /M (346) - (76) (860) - - (1282
At31 December 2016 restated) ~ RZE—7F+-A=+—H
(&51) 368,528 537,294 76,243 740 4084 - 1,033,559
Exchange adjustment R - (800) (258) (279 - - (133))
Provided for the year ERE 61827 FARVA 7,866 2698 510 - 114,024
Eliminated on disposal/write-off &R /M 922) - (27) (290) - - (1.239)
At 31 December 2017 R=F—+F+-A=1-R 429433 517,617 83,824 49539 4594 - 1,145,007
NET BOOK VALUES REFE
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+5+-A=1-H 1,745,510 149,862 73107 12,587 2415 1,813,058 3,796,539
At31 December 2016 restated) ~ RZE—7F+-A=+—H
(&) 1,807,798 190,883 80,288 14,258 2,151 1,398,372 3493750

Included in construction in progress are borrowing costs
capitalised and prepaid lease payments capitalised during the
year, amounting to RMB38,619,000 (2016: RMB62,199,000) and
RMB48,582,000 (2016: RMB48,582,000), respectively.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated after taking into
account their estimated residual value, using straight-line
method over the following useful lives:

Over the shorter of lease
terms or 40 years

Over the shorter of lease
terms or 10 years

5to 10 years

5years

5years

Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles

Details of pledge of assets are set out in note 35.

FREIRBBEFANBEEMEZEEKA RIEMSTE
EE  DRIAARE38,619,0007T(—ZT—R4F ¢
AR #62,199,0007T ) K& A K # 48,582,000 70 ( =
ZT—RF - AR¥E48,582,0007T) °

MRAEETIZAN - bt BRERREEE O
BT EMEIERER  UESERTIFEAER
£

B’BF RHEMOFHRD 45
(ABEERE)

HEWEKE WHAFIR T F
(ABIEERE)

R 55 Ko 25 REETEF

B BERERSZE OF

E hF

BERMEEZFBEEN  F2MHMES5 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

15. Prepaid Lease Payments

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise:

15. ENAHAEREA

REEZBNBAERAERS

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
(Restated)
(7))
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TERENONTAE :
Current portion BIHEAER 1D 65,775 65,775
Non-current portion FERNEAER D 2,290,740 2,356,515
2,356,515 2,422,290
Details of pledge of assets are set out in note 35. EIEBEE HIEEE - H52EME35 -
16. Interests in Associates 16. REE A EHER
2017 2016
B+t —E—RF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETTT
(Restated)
(E51)
Unlisted, at cost FE BT - AR 1,228,800 1,228,800
Discount arising on acquisition of additional FBEF RIS — M E QT
interest in an associate in prior years BOMERRE £ 2 ITiE 98,416 98,416
Gain arising on deemed disposal of interest in ~ F & [F H & — & A Rl
an associate in current year mELZ = 11,297 -
Share of post-acquisition profits and other FE(EWEE 2 %
comprehensive income, net of dividends REMPEmIES - RIS 1,730,830 1,562,190
3,069,343 2,889,406
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

16. REHE QRS (R)
R-F—tFR_FT-R"F+_A=t—-0" &
SENTIIBERRHAER

16. Interests in Associates (continued)
At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had interests in the
following associates:

Place/
Form of country of  Principal Proportion of nominal value of
business establishment/ place of issued capital/registered Proportion
Name of entity structure incorporation operation capital held by the Group of voting power held  Principal activities
ML/ FEBFMBERIRA/
BRZR EnfeE MY /ExR TEOEY ERRAEEL s RERLA TEEH
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZBLF | ZF R SE-tE | ZT5F
Beiren Group (note a) Incorporation ~ PRC PRC 49% 49% 49% 49%  Investment holding of a group
(TEARED) (zta) ML e i of companies engaging in the
operation of department stores,
supermarkets and property
leasing
HEEEE  BORIE
HEXBZEERAZ
RARK
Beiguo (note b) Incorporation ~ PRC PRC 15.05% 16.05% 15.05% 16.05%  Investment holding of a group
LB (M b) i E i of companies engaging in the
operation of department stores,
supermarkets and property
leasing
EBEE  ETRYE
HEXB EERAZ
RERR
AL EERTES Incorporation ~ PRC PRC 49% 49% 49% 49%  Retailing business in the PRC
EREMALA Rl i i ERERETERY
("Future Mall") (note ¢)
(EXTES))
(&t c)
Dragon Sign Limited Incorporation  HongKong ~ PRC 50% 50% 50% 50% Investment holding of a company
ERERAR i A i engaging in operation of
restaurants in the PRC
PRt ERBEE L
REZREER
Notes: M
(a) The Group's 60% owned subsidiary, Wingold Limited, indirectly (@) AEEZF OB ERZHMBARRSER QG M
held equity interest of 49% (2016: 49%) in Beiren Group. BRI AR EA9%( T —71F + 49%) AR ©
(b) At 31 December 2017, JAIJLMBIRIRE BBR A R] (" JBIR ), a wholly- b) W-Z—LFF+-_A=+—H BEERAIATANH

2EMBARAILEREEERAF ([TEIR]) £
ARER(ZE-RF LR EEET FREZ
EFRL—B(ZFT—RF: —R)ILEEE I

owned subsidiary of Wingold Limited, had a right to appoint at least
one (2016: one) director of Beiguo and has appointed two (2016: two)
directors of Beiguo, out of seven (2016: seven) directors in total. fEJR

held direct equity interest of 15.05% (2016: 16.05%) in Beiguo and has
significant influence over it. In addition, 69.31% (2016: 73.95%) equity
interest of Beiguo was being directly held by Beiren Group, where
the change in equity interest of Beiguo during the year ended 31
December 2017 was not accounted for as deemed disposal and was
accounted for as equity transaction in the account of Beiren Group
and therefore no profit or loss was recognised but only change in
reserves by Beiren Group. The change in JBJR 's direct equity interest
of Beiguo during the year ended 31 December 2017 was accounted
for as a deemed disposal (note 6(b)).

At 31 December 2017, the Group's 60% (2016: 60%) owned
subsidiary, Ample Sun Group Limited, held equity interest of 49%
(2016: 49%) in Future Mall. In addition, 51% (2016: 51%) equity
interest of Future Mall was being directly held by Beiguo.

ZAMB(ZE—AF: MB)ILEES - JHRE
B AILE15.05% (ZZF — 75 1 16.05%) B A4
I WHEBBEZES - 1A JEE69.31%(=
T —NF 1 73.95%) A ER BRI AS B EEE
B mEE-_E—t+tFE+_A=+—HILEFEL
B A 25 B B I A L AR B R ABRYI(E
BEHELARIEILAEBREZERS - Bt
bASEBIREERES  BEAKEEZD - HE
ZE—+tF+ZA=+—ALEFE  BRALE
WEEBRAESZARIESIELS (T
6(b)) °

RZZE—tF+-RA=+—H AEEHBFO%
(ZF—RF: 60%) EaMBEARGmREER
BABFAE LR TES 9% (ZF—7RF : 49%)
Pe AR o AN - ERTEH51% (ZF—RF -
51%) AR RILEBEERS

MEFHEEEERAIE —T—tFFR
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

16. Interests in Associates (continued)
The financial information in respect of the Group's associates is

set out below:

16. REE QAR ()

ERAASEMERARZMBENNT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETFIT
(Restated)
(E51)
Total assets BERR 12,657,397 12,252,406
Total liabilities afERsE 7,242,426 7,445,977
Net assets BERE 5,414,971 4,806,429
Group's share of associates’ net assets REBENBE AR EEFE 3,069,343 2,889,406
Revenue Wz 7,947,574 7,179,803
Profits and total comprehensive income AR N N AR A A
for the year 316,142 392,524
Group's share of profits and total &R B PR (R T N AR 5 A B
comprehensive income of associates e mila
for the year 289,272 314,338

Summarised financial information of material associate

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
material associate is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the associate’s
financial statements prepared in accordance with uniform
accounting policies in conformity with that adopted by the

Group.

Beiren Group is the only material associate to the Group and it
is accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated

financial statements.

EXBEQRZHMBENERERE
FRAAKEEABZARZHBENTZHIIM
T ATHBEMBE RN & QR 2 M B @K
222 BERREAESEHEMR MO
K o

EAEERAEERE-EXANEERE - ZHRA
REENF R M TEIHRRARR

Beiren Group EAKE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
(Restated)
(&%)
Current assets MBEE 7,082,751 6,912,269
Non-current assets FEMBEE 5,556,775 5,322,502
Current liabilities mEAE 7,121,270 7,359,920
Non-current liabilities IERBARE 111,953 74,405
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR IR 1,239,021 893,821
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

16. Interests in Associates (continued) 16. REEE ARz (&)
Beiren Group (continued) I AEHE(E)
2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREFT
(Restated)
(&3
Revenue g 25 7,875,952 7,099,193
Profit and total comprehensive income AEL N R 4a 2 ERA
for the year 313,457 391,612
Group's share of profits and other AEBFE(IE NS BAFE 5% F &
comprehensive income of Beiren Hip2ERA
Group for the year 287,930 313,882
Dividend declared from Beiren Group to the RERIEAEEBEHARES
Group during the year ZEEIRRE 120,632 136,965
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to BRI ANEERERE B ME RS R R
the carrying amount of the interest in an associate in respect of a2 BRTE(E B _F 3l B 75 R BTl 49 B
Beiren Group which recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFT
(Restated)
(E31))
Net assets of Beiren Group attributable mEAELIEAEE 2 EEFE
to owners 4,167,282 3,906,625
Proportion of the Group's direct ownership AEBE R A S E iR A
interest in Beiren Group HEHE 2R 49% 49%
2,041,968 1,914,246
Add: Interest in Beiren Group in respect of the Il : REBFEIL A LB AR
Group's further interest in Beiren Group's RIEAEEETHBRTA
certain subsidiaries FEIMEZS 1,023,041 972,169
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in AEBERIEAEE R
Beiren Group ZEEmEE 3,065,009 2,886,415

MEFHEEEERAIE —T—tFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B#5R &M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

16. Interests in Associates (continued) 16. REEE ARz (F)
Information of associate that is not individually material ERIERzEE NRGEER
2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
(Restated)
(7))
The Group's share of profit and total AEEHELEF
comprehensive income REzmEmkA 1,342 456
Carrying amount of the Group's interest REEREE N AR
in this associate pd kI 4,334 2,991
17. Interest in a Joint Venture 17. R—HEEELEES
At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had interest in the RZE—tFR_F—RF+_A=+—H" &
following joint venture: EERTIEBDEREREZ

Proportion of

Form of Place of nominal value Proportion
business establishment/ of issued capital of voting
Name of entity structure operation held by the Group power held  Principal activities
AEBFE
BITRAE
BREE EREBES BRI/ EE B &L FrERRRELLS ETEXK
BENERMES Sino-foreign equity PRC 50% 50%  Property holding and
BRAT] joint venture el leasing
(Shanghai Joinbuy FHRBEERE MERSFREE
City Plaza Co., Ltd.)
The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method of BB YRR EENEAE -
accounting:
2017 2016
B+t —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFR AREBFT
(Restated)
(&%)
Cost of unlisted investment in a joint venture —BEBLEIELTIEE 2K 372,082 372,082
Share of post-acquisition profits and total AL R 2 m T &
comprehensive income, net of dividends 2EA - FIERIEE 19,165 18,151
391,247 390,233

The summarised financial information related to the Group’s
interest in the joint venture is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in the
joint venture's financial statements prepared in accordance with
uniform accounting policies in conformity with that adopted by
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

17. R—BEELEES (H)

17. Interest in a Joint Venture (continued)

2017 2016
—E—+tfF —EREF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETTT
(Restated)
(&)
Non-current assets FERBEE 982,956 1,000,286
Current assets RENVEE 72,225 61,100
Current liabilities nEBEE 272,687 280,920
The above amounts of assets and liabilities rFiEEMBESEBENTIER ¢
include the following:
Cash and cash equivalents Re RRSEEY 27,294 12,494
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade BB E (TEEERNER
and other payables) B B Ath < R00E) 250,445 240,442
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT AREFT
(Restated)
(E31))
Revenue g 25 201,291 198,632
Profit for the year ARE 74,901 68,448
Dividend income recognised by the Group FAREE DR ZBHA
during the year 36,437 33,194
Group's share of profit and total comprehensive NS E & & & 1 a F &
income of the joint venture FEEET N 37,451 34,224
The above profit for the year includes the following: A ERFEHMBIENTIES
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —EREF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT ARETTT
(Restated)
(E51)
Depreciation and amortisation PTE R 21,396 21,403
Interest income F EUA 585 598
Interest expense T E S H 9,515 10,538
Income tax expense Friefiz 29,293 27,133
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

17. Interest in a Joint Venture (continued) 17. A—BEEEL%EER (E)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in a joint venture recognised
in the consolidated financial statements:

BB ERBANGES M BRETFR—HAE
ERERZREEHE:

2017 2016

—E—tF AN

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBFIT

(Restated)

(&%)

Net assets of the joint venture BENECZAETE 782,494 780,466

Proportion of the Group's ownership interest  ANEE B A 5 Lb 171 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest REER—BABEDERERS

in a joint venture <2 BREE 391,247 390,233

18. Properties under Development

Properties under development comprise two office towers of
the Group's commercial complex development project in
Shanghai, the PRC. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Group had additions of RMB141,242,000 (2016:
RMB118,573,000) to properties under development, which
include eligible capitalised borrowing costs of RMB12,006,000
(2016: RMB41,286,000). The Group intends to sell these two
office towers in part or in whole when the sale permit is granted
by relevant PRC authorities. Details of pledge of assets are set
out in note 35.

18. BEHYHE

BRAVEDEASENIR L SEAEELRRE
BEEFREFENRARNE - BE-_T—+F+=
A=+—BFLFE AEEERPMENILES
BAARB1412420000( T —XF: AR
118,573,0007T ) + E/ AR #12,006,0007t (==
— N4 AR¥41,286,0007T) BA T ERELRIE
BRA - EHhEGRHEEMIE FHE A% &
EEHEEMEFBEAELTH A EBHE - BI1F
HEEFI5B20M35 -

19. Inventories 78
2017 2016
—E—+fF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
(Restated)
(&%)
Merchandise held for resale BEFEEER 42,555 35,565
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20. Trade and Other Receivables 20. FEWRA R H b EEWFRIE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREET T
(Restated)
(&%)
Trade receivables eI BR 3K 56,242 45,590
Prepayments SELRREE N 1,989 2,853
Deposits paid [EENEa 1,638 1,872
Value added tax ("VAT") recoverable FENIBER ([1E(EFR]) 83,168 60,220
Loan receivables (note) ERER (M) 127,684 -
Others Hih 29,799 32,153
300,520 142,688
Less: Non-current portion (note) o IEmBEER Y (MIEE) (127,684) -
172,836 142,688

Note: The amount as at 31 December 2017 represented the outstanding
balance of loans to certain employees of Beiguo for the purpose
of enabling them to acquire shares of Beiguo. The loans would be
secured against the share interests in Beiguo held by the
respective employees. The loans are for a period of three years
from the date of grant in August 2017 and bear interests at a rate
equivalent to the one-year RMB benchmark interest rate as
quoted by the People’s Bank of China.

The Group's retail sales to customers are mainly made in cash,
through debit card or credit card payments. The trade
receivables arising from credit card sales are normally settled in
one to two business days and the rental income receivables are
normally settled 30 days in arrears. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts,
if any, presented based on the invoice date, which approximates
the respective revenue recognition dates:

Mz : SEAR_ZT—tF+-_A=+—BRILEET

BB BB - LR AR ER
5 o AR BB AL B 25 1
HIF - ERA—T—F/\ARTARASS
. BFBRREFREARRTAMGHARE—
EHEAEREE -

AEERBEZEFENTEHETRERRS £
ERFEBRT AN - BUBRFR G — R —
EMETERREMNERREER—RR=1H
AU EIE RS HA o AT R EUR R (FE R BRI
B(nE)) RIFEFHFAH (RS 8 R H A
i) Z BRER AT ©

2017 2016

—E—tHF A S

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥F T AREFT

(Restated)

(&%)

0-30 days OH=Z=30H 53,944 44,010
31-60 days 31 HZ 60 H 998 802
61-90 days 61 HZ 90 H 611 138
Over 90 days wiE 90 H 689 640
56,242 45,590
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20.

21.

Trade and Other Receivables (continued) 20. FEWERR R H it W RIE (&)
Included in the Group's trade receivables are from debtors with TEBRERKEFREHRPEREDBEARE
aggregate carrying amount of RMB2,298,000 (2016: 2,298,000 7T (ZZF—7<4F : AR#¥1,580,0007T) 2
RMB1,580,000) which are past due at the end of the reporting UG - ZE RGN RS B Him MRk E -
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment MAEEAR G ELREBEBRE ASEL &
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these ZEESIT A EAERR -
balances.
Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not BHERBEZEVERRERRE DT
impaired
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFT
(Restated)
(E51)
Overdue by: s Hp
1-30 days 1TH=Z30H 998 802
31-60 days 31HZxE60H 611 138
Over 60 days HiE 60 H 689 640
2,298 1,580
The Group has not provided impairment loss for all overdue REBNKRFEATA B A0 R AR SR VE R B
trade receivables because historical experience indicated that REGBBREBERELR SEFBEBERAWD
all such receivables could be recoverable from the relevant ZE FEUK ©
debtors.
An impairment of other receivables amounted to AN 52 [ 7 R L A JRE W KORU(E A R ¥ 11,130,000 7T
RMB11,130,000 (2016: RMB11,123,000) was recognised as the —T—RNF: AR¥11,123000T) AEEE
management considered such outstanding balance was REZEREERBEENE -
uncollectible.
Amount due from (to) a Joint Venture 21. EW(EN) —HBeELERE

At 31 December 2017, the amount due from a joint venture
included an entrusted loan to a joint venture of RMB30,000,000
(2016: RMB30,000,000), which was unsecured and carried fixed
interest rate of 3.5% (2016: 3.5%) per annum, and had a credit
term of one year and was subject to renewal at the end of each
term.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the amount due to a joint
venture represented accrued rental and management fee
payable to a joint venture. The amounts were unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2017

R-B—tLF+-A=+—0 BR-—HEa&EL
XN ABEEBETRAELENZRXERARE
30,000,000 7T ( =& — 7R & A K ¥ 30,000,000
7o) R EE F R EIS5% (ZF—7RF : 35%)
AR A —FHNERUNESEHRERKAE
(SEEI

RIB—tFER-_ZE-RF+_A=+—0 &
N—HeaBELEXZRABEIREN —REER
E2HERERE - WHA/ERT  RERA

REREEE -
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22.

23.

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit
or Loss

22. BAFEFABECERMEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT
(Restated)
(&)
Financial assets at FVTPL: BAFEFAERZ CREE
— listed equity securities in —REBLTRE (HEa)
Hong Kong (note a) 71,115 20,980
— structured investment products (note b) —#EEREER (WH:Eb) 785,500 55,000
856,615 75,980

Notes:

(a) The balances at 31 December 2017 and 2016 represented equity
shares listed in Hong Kong that were carried at fair value and
represented the quoted bid price in an active market at the end
of the reporting period.

(b) The balances at 31 December 2017 and 2016 represented
structured investment products placed with banks in the PRC, with
expected but not guaranteed return in the range from 2.20% to
4.90% per annum (2016: at 2.60% per annum), depending on the
performance of its underlying investments, which are mainly
bonds and debentures. These financial assets were measured at
FVTPL as their contractual terms do not give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the fair value of these financial assets
does not differ materially from their carrying amounts as at the
reporting date because of their short periods to maturity.

Bank Balances and Cash

At 31 December 2017, bank balances and cash comprised
mainly short-term deposits with original maturity within three
months and carry interest at prevailing market rates ranging
from 0.75% to 4.90% per annum (2016: 0.60% to 3.10% per

annum).

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
denominated in currency other than functional currencies of the
respective group entities:

@ RIEEERF-RFTA=t+—HZ#HE
MR BEBLMRERE  WRBEMRZERT
B2 BEABRBEARTEIE -

(b) RZE—EFRZT—R"F+ZA=+—HZ4&
BIEREFEMNRIT EEBEREER B
BEMRENFEWRRZEH220EZE490E(=
T-RNFR20EFE)  RTEABMEEREN
B (FZAELHREREE) - ZeREERAKRA
FEF AR BAESOKRRIETRIEE B
EXEAYNASRAEERSFIEZRER -
ARAREERA  HRZESREENTHARE
B HAPERFKEANEEAETEEAER -

23. RITEBERES
R-ZB—+t&F+-_A=+—8B " RO£FELRSE
FERBERRTTSEANEGTE (FAMENTF075E
F40E)(ZE—RF  FFENT0.0EZ3.10
BE)MR=EA RN Z B IR -

RITEFRASRENIINEREEERER
BUINEEEETEROTUR -

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AREBT T

(Restated)

(E%))

us$ eI 153,977 163,012
HK$ B TT 329,022 409,131
482,999 572,143
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24. Trade and Other Payables

24. BARAREMENRKIE

2017 2016

—E—tF “TRF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBFT

(restated)

(&)

Trade payables FETBERR 46,513 55,286
Construction payables FERTIER 136,900 108,500
Concessionaire sales payables FER ST EE S E RIE 499,156 490,530
Deferred income RIS 122,631 121,461
Rental deposits received B EZS 56,241 48,464
Accrued expenses FEETE A 41,368 47,647
VAT payable A< (R 43,742 37,806
Interest payables FETFE 1,853 1,332
Others Aty 83,486 80,038
1,031,890 991,064

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented

AT AREERRENERIRIEER AR ZIRER

based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: ey id)
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
(restated)
(&%)
0- 30 days 0HZ 308 38,867 44,876
31 - 60 days 31HE 60 H 1,603 2,938
61 -90 days 61 HE 9 H 1,393 2,003
Over 90 days 3@ 90 H 4,650 5,469
46,513 55,286

The average credit period of trade payables and concessionaire EENEREEMNSTFEREERBZFEEER
sales payables is within 45 days from invoice date. All ABBERHTHRAS AR - FTERMNEFEE
concessionaire sales payables are aged within 45 days from HERIEZ RIR RAERB LIS AUR -
invoice date. The Group has financial risk management policies KEERBYBRBREIRBER  RMAEMNRK
in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit EREEBRAZ -

timeframe.
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25. Bank Borrowings 25. SRITEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREFT
(restated)
(&%)
Bank borrowings comprise bank loans IRITIEERRITEFRAEK -
and are analysed as: WIRA T DT -
Secured Pgiiwiit 1,375,202 1,085,136
Carrying amount repayable based on RENFEEBBRHIEZ
contractual repayment dates: JEEEREE -
Within one year —FREE 5,000 141,646
More than one year, but not exceeding —FIEET B BME
two years 10,000 5,000
More than two years, but not exceeding BB BB =F
three years 30,000 10,000
More than three years, but not exceeding =FRETBBEMFE
four years 60,000 30,000
More than four years, but not exceeding MERE BB AF
five years 100,000 60,000
After five years IR F 1,170,202 838,490
1,375,202 1,085,136
Less: Amount due within one year shown under & : JI AREI B ER —FREIH]
current liabilities 2 FIA (5,000) (141,646)
Amount due after one year — 1A BIER 2 RIE 1,370,202 943,490
Variable-rate borrowings comprise: TEEEaIE
Carrying amount
REE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZEREF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARBFT
(restated)
(&751)
RMB bank borrowings ARBIRITER 1,375,202 1,085,136
The effective interest rates of the borrowings were at 4.4% (2016: ERBENREFMERLLY% - (ZF—7RF : 4.3%
4.3% —5.2%) per annum. £52%) °
At the end of the year, the Group had undrawn borrowing RARFERR - AEERBIRITRVE A E BB 40
facilities which are expiring as follows: T
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZEREF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREFT
(restated)
(E71))
Floating rate: EE
Within two years (2016: three years) RRERN (ZZE—RF : =F) 1,074,798 1,501,510

MEFHEEEERAIE —T—tFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

26. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Assets)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

26. EEBEKE (BE)
AT RIERE BB S RIS B 002 S -

financial reporting purposes:

2017 2016

—E—+tF AN

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFTT

(restated)

(&%)

Deferred tax assets RETIAE = (378) (408)
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBEE 31,424 21,500
31,046 21,092

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities

UNTREERZIBRERNBREENBBARR

recognised and movements thereon during the year: BEBREXNNEE :
Distributable
profits of PRC
subsidiaries,
Accelerated associates
tax and a joint
depreciation venture Total
FEMfE AR -
BENTIR
—BeELE
MEBIFRE ZT2EAE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFIT AREFIT
At 1 January 2016 (restated) R-ZT—XFE—H—H (&%) (305) 20,551 20,246
Exchange adjustment [l R g 28 (22) - (22)
(Credit) charge to profit or Rz (FrA) 0k
loss (note 9) (FzE9) 81) 21,500 21,419
Released upon dividends SRR EEET
declared (note 9) (F7E9) - (20,551) (20,551)
At 31 December 2016 (restated) R-E—RF+-_A=+—H
(&%) (408) 21,500 21,092
Exchange adjustment M < g 2 29 - 29
Charge to profit or loss (note 9) RigmEkR (P 9) 1 31,424 31,425
Released upon dividends EIRREEET
declared (note 9) (M13E9) - (21,500) (21,500)
At 31 December 2017 R_Z—+F+-_A=+—H (378) 31,424 31,046
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #3487 3R KK =E (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

26. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Assets) (continued) 26. EXEBIEEE(EE) (&)
Under the EIT Law, withholding tax at the rate ranging from 5% RETBECERSERE B -2 N\F—-A—H
or 10% is imposed on dividends in respect of profits earned by RTBEMERR  BEAR R —HEEREM
PRC subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture from 1 January 158 A 2 BB IR F- 5% 2 10% TETL © 7
2008 onwards. Deferred taxation of RMB31,424,000 (2016: ZE—+HF+ZA=+T—H BPEERAUDIE
RMB21,500,000) in respect of distributable profits of PRC entities i A B AR # 400,844,000t (ZE—RF : AR
amounting of RMB400,844,000 (2016: RMB215,000,000) has been #215,000,0007T ) % B E 1 H A K ¥ 31,424,000
provided as at 31 December 2017. At the end of the reporting TL(ZZT—RF : AR¥21,500,0007T ) #IE LEF
period, the aggregate amount of temporary differences B  REREHR - BB RARKRD IR &
associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for which FMEENZRHERUEZEWRERAR/ELS
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised was & - BE A AR 483,027,000 (ZF —7RF
RMB483,027,000 (2016: RMB312,721,000). No liability has been AR#312,721,0007T) ° FLIA EZRLZ G WRE
recognised in respect of these differences because the Group is el BAREEARNEHEREEZEZD
in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the RS - MEEERRAEISER AR
temporary differences and it is probable that such differences fEqEIE
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
At 31 December 2017, the Group had unused tax losses of RZZT—tF+_A=+—H AEEEXRHAH
approximately RMB609.4 million (2016: RMB496.8 million) FIAEE4) A AR 609,400,000 70 (T — 754 ¢
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset AR 496,800,000t ) + 7] FAYEHK 85 B 18 5 7 o
has been recognised in respect of tax losses for both years due RESFEREFH  BRBEEFRSHATER -
to unpredictability of future profit streams of relevant entities. B L R RS IR RRELHIEEE - £
The unrecognised tax losses arising from subsidiaries operated EENNBRAREENAERREEEEZN T
in the PRC will expire as follows: HIFHEIE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
Tax losses expiring in REBRRZFH RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETT
(restated)
(E31)
2017 —E—tF - 9,437
2018 —Z—)\F 50,175 50,175
2019 —E-NF 135,860 135,860
2020 —E-EF 156,380 156,380
2021 B —F 144,990 144,990
2022 B F 122,005 -
609,410 496,842
During the year ended 31 December 2017, approximately HE_Z—+FTRA=1+—BIEFE " HAR
RMB9.4 million (2016: RMB7.9 million) tax losses expired. #9.400,0007C(=Z—7"F : AR 7,900,0007T)
M IRERE B8 -
27. Amount due to a Non-Controlling Shareholder 27. Ef B LT —AFERBRRRE

of Subsidiaries

The amount is unsecured and non-interest bearing. The non-
controlling shareholder of subsidiaries agreed not to demand
for repayment within one year from the end of the reporting
period.

FZREREEMRRER - WEBARZIFERER
RETEZRERSHR—FNEERIEA

MEFHEEEERAIE —T—tFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B#5R &M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

28. Share Capital 28.

Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital during
the period from 4 January 2016 (date of incorporation) to 31
December 2017 are as follows:

&
AARBAR T —AF— AMA GEMKA
) E-—F—+F+-A=+—BHEE i
mF

Number of
shares Amount
BREE MIE
HK$'000
FAT
Authorised: SETERA
At 4 January 2016 (date of incorporation) RZZT—R"F— AW (FMKZB )

(HK$0.10 each) (note a) (BREEA.10B T, ) (HiEa) 3,800,000 380
Increase in authorised share capital by BINEERA - BEREBEITRARET

sub-dividing each of the issued and AR 0.10 BILA A 20 BRFTAR -

unissued existing shares of HK$0.10 into HARE(E 0.005%8 7T (MisE c)

20 new shares of HK$0.005 each (note ) 72,200,000 -
Increase in authorised share capital (note c) BANEE AR (Bt c) 3,924,000,000 19,620
At 31 December 2016 and 2017 (HK$0.005 each) MZZ—REFER-ZT—+F

+=—A=+—H (EkME0.005%7x) 4,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIT REUR IR -
At 4 January 2016 (date of incorporation) RZT—RF—AWBE (FMKZBE )

(HK$0.10 each) (note a) FREER0.108 THMRG (it a) 1 -
Issue of shares (note b) BT (5T b) 2 -
Share subdivision of HK$0.10 each being BARE(E 0.10 Btavikm - DR 20 iR

subdivided into 20 subdivided shares of % - BREE0.005 8 T (M7Ec)

HK$0.005 each (note c) 57 -
Issue of shares pursuant to the capitalisation BTG (EEd)

issue (note d) 1,602,586,440 8,013
At 31 December 2016 and 2017 (HK$0.005 each) WR-ZT—"ER-_ZT—+4F

+-—A=+—H (Z&RmE0.005%;) 1602586500 8,013

RMB'000

AREF T

Shown in the financial statements in RMB REBREAAREZS 6,884

A total of 1,602,586,440 shares of the Company were issued to
Lifestyle International on 11 July 2016 in pursuant to the
Reorganisation. Accordingly, the number of shares in issue was
increased to 1,602,586,500. Prior to the Listing, on 14 July 2016,
Lifestyle International paid a dividend by means of distribution
in specie of the entire issued share capital of the Company to its
shareholders. The distribution was made by way of allocating
one share of the Company for every one share of Lifestyle
International held by the shareholders of Lifestyle International
at the close of business on the distribution record date on 11
July 2016.

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

28.

29.

Share Capital (continued)

Notes:

(a) On 4 January 2016, the Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands under the Companies Law as an exempted company with
limited liability with an authorised share capital of HK$380,000
divided into 3,800,000 shares of HK$0.10 each. On the same date,
one share of HK$0.10 in the Company was issued to the initial
subscriber, Sharon Pierson, for cash at par, which subscriber share
was transferred to Lifestyle International at par.

(b) On 23 June 2016, the Company acquired the entire issued share
capital of both Majestic Eagle Limited and Excellent Global
Limited from Lifestyle International, which was satisfied by way of
the Company allotting and issuing two new shares of par value of
HK$0.10 each, credited as fully paid, to Lifestyle International.

(c) Pursuant to the written resolution of the shareholder of the
Company passed on 23 June 2016, each of the issued and
unissued existing shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of
the Company was subdivided into 20 shares of par value of
HK$0.005 each, and the authorised share capital of the Company
was then further increased from HK$380,000 to HK$20,000,000 by
the creation of an additional 3,924,000,000 shares.

(d) Pursuant to the Reorganisation, a total of 1,602,586,440 new
shares, all credited as fully paid, were allotted and issued to
Lifestyle International by way of capitalisation of the amount of
HK$8,086.3 million (equivalent to RMB6,947.0 million) due from
the Company to subsidiaries of Lifestyle International.

All ordinary shares of the Company rank pari passu in all
respects.

Statutory Surplus Reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign
investment enterprises in the PRC, the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of their respective
after-tax profits as reflected in the statutory financial statements
of the PRC subsidiaries to the statutory surplus reserve until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to make up prior year
losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by
means of capitalisation, provided that such reserve fund is
maintained a minimum of 25% of the registered capital.

28.

29.

A (%)

(a) RZZE—ARF—AMNA - RARRERGERH
SHEAMRILBELARRCERDT AT
fi% 74X & 380,000 7% 7T 9 4 3,800,000 A% & 1% 0.10 75
TCRIRR (D » AN AR —R%0.108 TR AR 1D AIR & 1E
B E (277 7 #1148 728 A Sharon Pierson * 2
i AR 7R AR (E 558 7 AR B -

b) ARFARZZE—RFRAZT=EREAEBEERK
f% Majestic Eagle Limited }2 Excellent Global
Limited {2 #BE BT - (EERA A RMFIE
Bl AL R 1T 2IEERCI0E TG - A
NRIBBUE -

© REFAABREA-F-AFAA-+=ABB
MEEARE - AR ARATSR010BLANT
1T RAR BT IR 5 1 /3 2018 5 18 80,0057
TR - AR AR AATE R AR B BB
#1513,924,000,000 fi% fi% {7 # — 2 £ 380,0007% JT
#E 0= 20,000,000 7T °

(d) RIBEEH - BRI RFEITE 2£1,602,586,440%
FBRM (B2 ARSR) FHERBEIUNEARL
MEBERONE AR ERARQR AR
8,086,300,0007% 7t 2 X B(H B R AR
6,947,000,0007T) °

AEARBARBARTHETARNS THBEEA

R -

EEBBAES
RIBPEINERECEMBRBERERRE
AR E) R B R ) A R BB A BUAE B
BRERPRMAOBRHRZEN Z 10% BB EEER
HRAEEEEREREDZEMEARN0% < EE
BB B AFRMBEFENEBER(IA) -
VAB@EAMCETERBEARN - AIREZF M
BERERSEEME R 25%IA L »
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B#5R &M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

30. Operating Leases 30. FEHED

The Group as lessee AEEEREHEA
2017 2016
—EB—tF ZERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT
(restated)
(&751)

Minimum lease payments paid under FRREEEHEOENZ
operating leases during the year: SARMEA A

Other assets HiEE 1,526 636
Leasehold land and buildings HE+HMEF 133,656 134,796
135,182 135,432

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group incurred
contingent rents of RMB45,947,000 (2016: RMB43,136,000) which
was based on certain percentage of sales.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases (fixed rent only) which fall due as follows:

HE-Z—+F+-_A=+—HAILFEE K&£H
BHEEETE EINRARABEAARE
45,947,0007T( ZF—754F + ARME43,136,0007T) ©

RI|EHRR - AEBE AT A REHLSAL 2 P&
ERRKEROFR(RREERES) SR TIIF
2

2017 2016

—Z2—+tF —E-RF

RMB'000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AREF T

(restated)

(E31))

Within one year —ER 137,491 135,379
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EELF (BREEEMF) 553,452 549,799
Over five years B RF 320,099 461,106
1,011,042 1,146,284

The above commitments represent commitments for leasing
commercial properties amounting to RMB1,009,918,000 (31
December 2016: RMB1,145,673,000) and other assets amounting
to RMB1,124,000 (31 December 2016: RMB611,000).

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for leasing commercial properties and other assets which
represented machineries. Rentals payable are predetermined at
fixed amounts except for certain lease of which contingent
rental are charged based on certain percentage of sales. Leases
are generally negotiated for terms ranging from one year to five
years and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from one year to
two years except the lease of Shanghai Joinbuy Cityplaza from
Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza Co., Ltd. by Shanghai Ongoing
Department Store Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, is for the period from 1 October 2004 to 30
September 2024, with an option to renew for further ten years
upon the request from Shanghai Ongoing Department Store
Limited in not less than twelve months before the expiry of the
lease terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

30.

31.

32.

Operating Leases (continued)

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

30.

feeEls (|

AEBER LA

R|EMR - ARBEDRES T HOM B RRIER
HEWT -

2017 2016
—E—tF ZERF
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
(restated)
(E751)
Within one year —FR 51,175 48,861
In the second to fifth year inclusive FOEFERF (BEEEMSF) 54,648 71,927
Over five years BB RF 2,268 9,456
108,091 130,244
Leases are generally negotiated for terms ranging from one year Y —RIZIAEHME — S HERg o
to five years.
In addition, the Group contracted with its concessionaires to oh s REEEESTEEIRE T EBEXR

receive contingent rentals based on the concessionaires’
turnover for terms ranging from one year to two years.

WS ARSI FRRPR—EMFZEL -

Capital and other Commitments 31. EXRHMARE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFT
(restated)
(E7))
Capital and other expenditure in respect BRIAMERN RS mEREE
of acquisition of property, plant and BHEBAME - BEEEER
equipment and property development YEERBEE ZERREMMAS
project contracted for but not provided
in the consolidated financial statements 683,740 979,496

Capital Risk Management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings
as disclosed in notes 25, net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.

32.

& REREE
AEMERAAA  ARRAEE AR
SEEE - ANEBEILEBRRALS AR
P& REBERR - AREZ EEFBEREHS
RIPER T -

REEZ EARBRIEMT 2B WENRITEE
NGRS MR EBYREARREA AR EER
(BREEHTRA - BERREETN) -

AARERTHR ERRE - ERZRFT 2 —
By ARBPEEERERKARZIE RIBR
ZRER - REARXPNEEZEE  AEERKER
IR RS - BITHA - IR BB KRBT ERE
EEREBEHEN FEEBRBERREE -
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33. Financial Instruments

33. &@IT A

Categories of financial instruments SRTEER
2017 2016
—B—+tfF ZE-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
(restated)
(E31))
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL (note 22) AT ESFABZZEmEE (H7E22) 856,615 75,980
Financial assets measured at amortised cost RBEK AT EC EMEE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BPREReMREEEY) 1,521,624 2,183,652
Financial liabilities SEAaE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost LEHEKAAEZ SRIAE 2,245,024 1,903,349
Financial risk management objectives and policies B ERERE B N REE

The Group's major financial instruments include bank balances
and cash, financial assets at FVTPL, dividend receivable from an
associate, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables,
amount due from/to a joint venture, bank borrowings and
amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of subsidiaries.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

Currency risk

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
operating in the PRC is RMB in which most of its transactions are
denominated. The functional currency of the subsidiaries
operating in Hong Kong is HK$ in which most of the transactions

are denominated.

The Group has certain foreign currency denominated bank
balances at the end of the reporting period and details of which

are disclosed in note 23.

The Group mainly is exposed to currency risk of US$ and HKS$.
The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets at the end of each reporting

period are as follows:

AEBzTE2LMTABRRBITEBRIEAS 12
RNFEFAERZSBMEE  BR—MEBEQF
BB~ FEUOR R e LA MR BROR -~ AT BR R E
BRI - UL N —HA B ERIE - ReT
fEE AR JER B A B — B FE I IR IR FR0R © 3%
ELMTAEBNESAMERE - USSR T
EARR 2 Bl ROR R A B R 2 BURER T3 e
EREeEEREEZSRR  AEREKES
RO EREUE B 6 o

SRR

RRBZNEEEERARE R BEENK B
NE BRABORGUARBEE - NEEE
BOMBRRZNEREER/ET  EFABIR
ZNBTLEE -

BERWEHAEER  AEBEFE TIHEER
7

T47F - ARFBRME23RKE

AEEFEEYETRETHBEERR - RE
WERK  AEBUIMNEHEEEREERTEN
T

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ERF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETT
(restated)
(E31))
Assets EE
us$ E7T 153,977 163,012
HK$ BT 329,022 409,131

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arises.
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33. ERMIAA)

33. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change of 5% (2016: 5%) in exchange rate of
US$ and HK$ against RMB, while all other variables are held
constant. 5% (2016: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to the key management
personnel and represents the management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign currency rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
end of each reporting period for a 5% (2016: 5%) change in
foreign currency rate. A positive number below indicates an
increase in profit for the year where RMB weakens against the
relevant foreign currency. Where RMB strengthens against the
relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit for the year and the amounts below would
be negative.

B 5 R B B TR O R BRER (AR

Shis LB ()
TRENAEBRETLABTLHLARE 2 E R
BEHER5% (ZF— 7N« 5%) BB A A H i
BER DB 2 BURE ° 5% (T —XF 1 5%)
REBERABANEDERINE R R AT 2 8%
U REBEYHIIMNEERAIGEAREE 2T
e MRESTERBERLBMINEFEERIA
B YREREARLZS%(ZF—NF 1 5%)5b
PEREE ARG - WMARELAEINE T
AN T IERRTRFRENIEI - W ARE N BR
BE¥ L7 RledsmaiEERSERRZY
2 BNUTHSERAH-

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARBFT

(restated)

(8751)

US$ against RMB ETRARE 5,774 6,113
HK$ against RMB BITHARE 12,338 20,457

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate bank deposits and fixed-rate balances with a joint
venture (2016: fixed-rate bank deposits and fixed-rate balances
with a joint venture). The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk relating to the Group's variable-rate loan
receivables and bank borrowings (2016: variable-rate bank
borrowings). The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

ERERR  ARNFERZERIERRE AR
& BMBRESM L TIRREBINERL o

FREkR
AEEEYHEENRBTFRARE-REEDR
FWEENREHZ A FENRER(ZF KX
FEENERITER  B-HAECENEE
MR - ARETEHRSRENTER - T)
FRAKBEIPNEREERIRTER(ZF
—REOFEIAERRITER) o ARER KW AL
A RERHE - A ERESEENER
b W EEE FBEIPEANEER -
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33. M I A&

33. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group's sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk has been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates for loan
receivables and bank borrowings (2016: bank borrowings)
(excluding the specific bank borrowings for construction
purpose). The analysis is prepared assuming these balances
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2016: 50 basis points)
increase or decrease is used for variable-rate balances when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. The Group's
sensitivity to interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period
while all other variables were held constant after taking into
account the impact of the tax and finance costs capitalised in
construction in progress and properties under development are
as follows:

B EBREE R HREE (F)

FREK ()
AEBB RS RMEFE R BRE - THREER
ERRIBITRE (T —RF - RITEE) (M EF
FERITREEFRERR) MRRER - DITRMER
RBEPRRZSREZBERNEFARN - B0
TETEASAEERMERERE - S0EER (=
TN SOEEE) MRS BREMT S
ey YRREEEHMNEAIEAEE ST
- A RMEHESTE  KEEHELE
BERAERMERERTIENERTMER AL
BN EmERREMERBHEZEDT

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+—-HLEE

2017 2016
—B—tF | —TRF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFT
(restated)
(251)
Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit for the year FRBRFHE @ FEMN Optd)
— as a result of increase in interest rate — ARF=E T 479 (512)
— as a result of decrease in interest rate — FBRFIE T (479) 512

In management's opinion, the sensitivity is unrepresentative of
the inherent interest rate risk as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.
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33. ERMIAA)

33. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at 31
December 2017 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the directors of the Company have
formulated a defined credit policy and delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable regularly at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced. The Group's
retail sales are mainly on cash basis, either in cash, debit card or
credit card payments.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
relation to trade and other receivables, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties and customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in respect of amount
due from a joint venture and dividend receivable from an
associate. However, the directors considers the risks associated
with amount due from a joint venture and dividend receivable
from an associate are minimal.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had available
unutilised borrowing facilities of approximately RMB1,075
million (31 December 2016: RMB1,502 million). Details of bank
borrowings are set out in note 25.

Based on the above, the directors of the Company considers
the Group does not have any significant liquidity risk and it will
be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due in the
foreseeable future.

B 5 R B B TR O R BRER (AR

FERR

REE—tF+-A=T—H AEERHETH
REBTHAEAMRERNEERCHEER Y
ZERSEERR  EEAMBRARMEZEE
EZREE - RESREEERR  ARRES
EHERENEABRRERZE—MAR  FEE
EEERE HWEREREEETEMEERRF -
IATERBEBRE A BB MEE 2B FH - UbIh -
AREE S RIS HIRE B AT & I8 18 Bl e Yk iR X
I Z AR 2 5R - LAREGR 3L 1 AT I FRIB 1F
RHREREE - St ARBFEERR  A%H
ZEERBODABRL AEEZTEHETER
MHRE - IR RHEBREFET

MR T REBREEFARBI RS EET
T2 RIT WRBESZEERBRAER

REBEREUER L EMEERFREEAEF
EERR > RROHRBEZRZEFRES °

BRAEYN —HaEDERAREY g E QT
B AEBEBEPNERRR - AT BEER
REBRKR—TEE S EFAREKR L
AR EZ RBIRIE -

8

REBRDESRERE AEEERLEFER
ERRRAENAEERBAEESKTZRE
MR EEY LRERSRERPTE B
BERRITERZER  BRETERES

FEEKERITEEEREZENRBDE SR - K
“EAF+TA=T B - AEEZARERRT
EEREREE LR/ ARY1,075000,0007T (7 ==
—R"ETZA=+—H: AR%1,502,000,0007T) °
REEZRITEEFIEHNMES -

ERLd ARBEEFR/ARELEEMNEKR

mEBETRR WK METTEERNERARK
BB B EAE -

MEFHEEEERAIE —T—tFFR
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33. Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
In addition, the following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted gross
cash flows of financial liabilities based on earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay.

33. €@ I A (/)
PSR EEE MR EE ()

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows to the
extent that interest flows are of floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of each

reporting period.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

REES R ()

FI - TRAIARBESHITESRAGBEHR AL
FHIBE - TRIVZRAEE A R ESIE R Z &
ERH UeRABZIFMRRSRER

TREHINFNERASESR - BMERAFY
= BEIR S REOR B A E HIRAO M B R AR

RBEE RIS RBRE

Weighted
average On demand/ Total
effective less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year years Syears  cash flows amount
mETS RER/ =f@R £ 1)
ERAZE  -@AUT -E=fR E-F —-E2RF BENE  RENEE REE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT  ARETT ARMTR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
31 December 2017 R=2—t#+=A=t-R
Non-derivative financial liabilities {74 £ REE
Trade and other payables FEWBR T R A FE 308 - 733,452 1,739 - - - 735,191 735,191
Amount due to a non-controlling  FEfMEB AR — & IR
shareholder of subsidiaries A - - - - 89,795 - 89,795 89,795
Bank borrowings — variable-rate  $R47{EE — F BT
(note 25) (H3E 25) a4 5,151 9,803 50,693 442,752 1,188,033 1,696,432 1,375,202
Amount due to a joint venture EN—FABLENE - 44,836 - - - - 44,836 44,836
783,439 11,542 50,693 532,547 1,188,033 2,566,254 2,245,024
Weighted
average  On demand/ Total
effective less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year years Syears  cash flows amount
IMEF REX/ =f@A ST
ERA=E  —@EANT —E=fEA EF i TEUE  ReReR REfE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTR ARBTT ARBTT ARBTR ARBTT AR%TR
31 December 2016 (restated) R-B-AE+-A=1-8
(E3)
Non-derivative financial liabilities {74 £ REE
Trade and other payables JEURER S T E b P 300B - 678,209 1,839 - - - 680,048 680,048
Amount due to a non-controlling  FEfMIB AR — & IR ER
shareholder of subsidiaries pa- - - - - 89,690 - 89,690 89,690
Bank borrowings — variable-rate ST E — 8T
(note 25) (HisE 25) 448 4182 7,959 176,35 228,871 920,504 1,337,872 1,085,136
Amount due to a joint venture ER-—HAECEE - 48,475 - - - - 48,475 48,475
730,866 9,798 176,356 318,561 920,504 2,156,085 1,903,349
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33. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to
change if changes in variable interest rates differ from those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

Price risk

The Group's financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group is
exposed to price risk. The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risk
profiles. Details of the financial assets at FVTPL are set out in
notes 22. The Group's sensitivity to price risk on the financial

33. ERMIAA)

B 5 R B B TR O R BRER (AR

REE SR (H)
EXBFETEERABZIHNETAREZS
B eRFBHNREH AR RRE N RAEE RS
D-‘—ﬁﬁﬁkfzo

B E R
FEBUAFEAABSEZEMEENREHRR

ARFERE - Bt AEEEHERRR - &
2 BRI A TR E R H‘J&iﬁ%ﬂé%%ﬁ%ﬁ
Rk e MAFEFAERZEBEENFBHER
BiFE22 - EEMEHESIET  AEERRE

H il AN\ V] = b
assets at FVTPL (listed equity securities in Hong Kong) at the Hj{ﬂiéﬁ;fﬂJr)\}iriuﬁTﬂgg(ﬁAE BLT
end of the reporting period while all other variables were held B B '
constant is as follows:

2017 2016

—E—+F —ZE—RF

Reasonably possible change in price Bz AR EE 5% 5%
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETFT

(restated)

(E31)

Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit for the year FRERFZFEFIEMN Gl )

— as a result of increase in price — APMEEIE N 3,556 1,049
— as a result of decrease in price — ERERIED (3,556) (1,049)
The management considered the remaining balance of financial BERERREATEMABRZEREENEMD

assets at FVTPL (structured investment products) is not
subjected to material price risk.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors of the
Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values
at the end of the reporting period:

HE(EBEREER) THHEXNERER -

ERMTAZAFERE

BRTRMIISN ARREERREAPIERERS
REBHRAFENSREERSRAENREE
EHEXERS BRRNHDFEEEE

31 December 2017
—g—t5+=A=1-8

31 December 2016
T-XFE+-_A=1+—H

Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
REEE ATE IRAEER NE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETR ARBETF T AREFIT
(restated) (restated)
(E31) (&%)
Financial liabilities S =N
Amount due to a non-controlling  FETEEB A &) 32 AR A 3R
shareholder of subsidiaries IR 89,795 86,002 89,690 85,844

MNEFHEEEERAIE —%
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33. Financial Instruments (continued) 33. ¢TI A (H)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BRRER RN RBEK (&)
(continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments (continued) SRITAZAFEFE(E)
Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value AEEAETHEREECSARSHABRATF
at the end of the reporting period. The following table gives BEifE - TREHABNNRETELSREERN
information about how the fair values of these financial assets ATFE(CERGEETEZNERNBAZE) -

are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used).

Relationship of
Significant  unobservable
Fair value  Valuation technique(s) unobservable inputs to
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy  and key input(s) inputs fair value
ELEEN
AYE EEREN EXEEER WASYH
SREE AFER EFIEY TEHANSY NBASE ATENEE
31.12.2017 | 31.12.2016
—E-tF | ZEF
+=A +=A
=t+-A =+-A
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR | ARBTT
(restated)
(F7)
Financial assets at FVTPL
BAFEFAERZEREE
1. Listed equity securities 71,115 20,980 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active N/A N/A
FRE Eh— market. NaEf TNEmR
WEETSTHEARE
2. Structured investment products 785,500 55,000 Level 2 Discounted cash flow: Future N/A N/A
HEERLEER £ cash flows are estimated based NaEf TNEH
on expected return, discounted
at a rate that reflects the risk of
underlying investments.
BREASRE  ERNEHER
RRMABRERRAIEER -
BEARRRERE
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during both FE— - B R EES F & EFHIE A (]
years. i o
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

34. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from 34. HRMEEHEENEEHER
Financing Activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TRANAEEREREZDEENABES -
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash BREREeMIFRSETH RETHELENEER
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for BEASEGAHERERT O BRARE LT Z
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be classified in BEmAERNNEE -
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows from financing
activities.
Amount
due to a
non-controlling
Bank Interest shareholder
borrowings payables of subsidiaries Total
FEAHE AR
IR
RITEE ERRE MRERFRIH B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETF T ARETFT ARBET T
(note 25) (note 24) (note 27)
(5T 25) (5T 24) (Bft5E 27)
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 1,085,136 1,332 89,690 1,176,158
Dividend declared EEIRRE - - 114,450 114,450
Interest accrued =HEF B - 3,344 - 3,344
Capitalised borrowing costs EBREHEER AR - 50,625 - 50,625
Financing net cash inflows MEEHRESTEACGEL)
(outflows) FER 290,066 (53,448) (114,345) 122,273
At 31 December 2017 R-ZTE—+F+_-A
=+—H 1,375,202 1,853 89,795 1,466,850
35. Pledge of Assets 35. EEEM

At 31 December 2017, the Group pledged certain of the
Group's (i) property, plant and equipment in the PRC of nil (31
December 2016: RMB1,847 million (restated)), (i) prepaid lease
payments in the PRC with carrying value of approximately
RMB1,821 million (31 December 2016: RMB2,351 million
(restated)) and (iii) properties under development with carrying
value of approximately RMB467 million (31 December 2016:
RMB467 million (restated)) to secure bank loan facilities in an
aggregate amount of approximately RMB2,450 million (31

December 2016: RMB2,587 million (restated)).

R-ZZB—+tF+-_A=+—B AEBEDEHEAR
EEETOEAEAS(ZT—RF: AR
1,847,000,000 7T (EF)) MR E 2 W12 - BE &
B ()EREE L B AR EE1,821,000,0007T (=
T—XF+-A=+—H8: AR¥2351,000,000
JL(EH)) KA R B 2 T8 7 & 7108 K (i) BR (8
4 & N R #467,000,000t( —E—NE+ - A
=+—08: AR®467,000,0007T(EF])) 7 3R
RYERIF  (EAAEBERRITREBNAA
R #2450,000000c( =& — N F: AR
2,587,000,000 7T (&%) °

MEFHEEEERAIE —T—tFFR
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36. Related Party Disclosure

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial

36. BEALHE
RINRA BB RE A O RES -

ARE YR

statements, the Group had the following transactions and
balances with related parties:

(a) Transactions

During the year, the Group had entered into the following

IATEEATETNR S RASKMT -

(a) X3

RER > NEEETIBEANLTHETT T

significant transactions with the following related parties. BEARG
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—N
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBFR AEETFT
(restated)
(&751)
Nature of related party transactions HEEATHRZUE
0] Rental and management fee to YT EBNERTESER AR
Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza Co., Ltd. (MEEELEDZHEESR
("Property JV") EIEE 200,045 197,142
(ii) Interest income from Property JV RKEMESE QT BUWA 1,065 1,068
(i) Rental expenses to subsidiaries of TR FFEEEREAME AR
Lifestyle International (note 3) ez (MEE3) 10,244 9,978
(iv)  Rental income from subsidiaries of FEFEEZERERR AR
Lifestyle Properties Development ([FIEHE ) B AR Z
Limited (“Lifestyle Properties”) AW (M2 K& 4)
(notes 2 and 4) 164 400
(v)  Project management expenses to a Y FHEES —ENB AR Z
subsidiary of Lifestyle Properties HEERESH (ME2Kk4)
(notes 2 and 4) 3,370 11,589
(vi)  Interest expenses to subsidiaries of S FREBEREME AR 2
Lifestyle International and which were WEAMEF L E (3 &5)
capitalised (notes 3 and 5) - 66,457
(vi)  Consultancy fee to a subsidiary of YA FREEE—ERBARZ
Lifestyle International (notes 3 and 5) M & (M3 %5) - 4,608
(viii)  Rental and management fee income from RE —fEBt & R FIAHEE &
an associate BEIRBUA 10,144 10,359
Notes: 5T
(1) The Group's related party transactions were conducted in 0] REENABZZHRBAHAERAE T /A
accordance with the terms and conditions mutually agreed 190 P21 O DGR R AN R A 37 T o
by the contracting parties.
2) The counterparties are subsidiaries of Lifestyle Properties, 2 RS HENEBENKEAG - 21885k

of which Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, was chairman of the
Board and non-executive director.
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

36. Related Party Disclosure (continued)

(a) Transactions (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(3) The counterparties are subsidiaries of Lifestyle
International, of which Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, is a

controlling shareholder.

(4) The transactions ceased to be related party transactions
after the resignation of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, as
chairman of the Board and non-executive director of

Lifestyle Properties on 31 May 2017.

(5) The transactions ceased upon completion of the spin-off

and Listing of the Company.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of the executive director being the key
management personnel, was determined by the
remuneration committee of the Company having regard
to the performance of the individuals and market. Details
of which together with the other four (2016: four) highest

paid employees are disclosed in note 11 above.

37. Retirement Benefits Schemes
Hong Kong

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme under
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”). Both the
Group and the employee contribute 5% of the employee’s
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000 in accordance with MPF Scheme Ordinance. No
forfeited contribution was available to reduce the contribution

payable in the future years.

PRC

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
respective local governments in relevant jurisdictions. The
Group is required to contribute and recognise a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligations of the Group with respect to these schemes
are to make the specified contributions and recognise the
respective retirement pay in accordance with terms set out in

the schemes and relevant jurisdiction requirements.

The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the above
mentioned schemes during the year amounted to approximately

RMB?7.7 million (2016: RMB7.6 million).

36.

37.

BEATHE (&)

(@) X5 @)
Mg ()

B  REIHTANEEENNERR  BI2BE
EREAZIRARE -

@ HRBEREEN T —EFAA=T—
HEBENRHLERARTERIFNTE
= ARZEZXSEFIERMERS -

6) EEXRGRARBTEAF ETEREL -

(b) FEEEASHMH
PITERERIZEBABZFHZAAR
NAEFHE EGRBEARRNTISME
E o BFHEREMINE(ZT—RF [
B)ZEEFREF BN 11 3EE -

RIREAEE

EY
AEESRBMSH B ([RMS B TREH
HETB - AEE R A T 5% BRA R MBI
o BERELHBED AESANELRA
30,0007 7T « 432 U4 3K AT PR 3L A G 0 4
fRHEERK -

HE

AEEETFENBTHRMBRAIEEERMNNA
98 3t 77 TR A& F B B 3R B TR AR IR AR A ET B B AR
o AEEARBRIERTEXNANEEAD L
FETEIAE BB RIREN - AR LIS LAt S0 —
B R A 18 TE R R R AR R A B FT B AT 15
FANER AT BB ERZAMERARTE -

7

B LR Eh et ABSENERAERDORA
K #7,700,0007T (= F — X5 : AR7,600,000
TT) °
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38. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the details of the Company's
principal subsidiaries are as follows:

38. T EMBRRIFE

R-FB—tER_F-ARF+-_A=+—8B &
REFHAEZEEMBARFBNOT

General information of subsidiaries (a) HMIBATMN—RER
Place/Date of
incorporation/ Attributable
establishment Issued and fully paid share equity interest
Name of company and operation capital/registered capital of the Group Principal activities
HRAIREELY
AR UREMELEH BRARES/ERRA AEEELER IEXR
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tfF ZERE Z2-tF By
Ample Sun Group Limited Hong Kong 17 August 2007 HK$62,050,000 HK$62,050,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
HREEARAA BEZETLE/\ATEA 62,050,000 #7 62,050,000 AT RERR
EEAXEEERAA PRC 26 July 2004 US$12,000,000 1S$12,000,000 65% 65% Retailing business
Shanghai Ongoing Department HEARRAE 12,000,000 X7t 12,000,000 %70 2EXH
Store Limited “ERMECASTAE
Wingold Limited Hong Kong 20 April 2007 HK$10,000 HK$10,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
#EERAA BE_ZRTENAZTA 10,000 &7 10,000 7% RERR
HiegBEE2(L8)ARAT™  PRC23 April 2012 RMB2,500,000,000 RMB2,500,000,000 100% 100% Property development
BEARLNE AR 2,500,000,000 77 | AR 25000000007 NELR
Z3-CFPAZT=A
HEFSHBERRAR PRC 31 March 2012 RMB15,000,000 RMB15,000,000 100% 100%  Retailing business
hEARANE AR 150000007 | AR 150000007 FELE
I e
EREEEEERLF PRC 1 December 2006 RMB710,090,392 RMB710,090,392 100% 100%  Retailing business
hEARAAE AR® 7100003927 | ARETI00003927 TEXR
ZZRRET2R-H
HEES @ ERAR PRC 1 March 2007 RMB683,955,600 RMIB63 955,600 100% 100% Retaling business
Lifestyle Plaza (Suzhou) Co,, hEARANE
Limited ZZRLE-R-H AR 683,955,600 7T | ARE 683955600 2EXH
FIRAE (RE)BRAR™ PRC9 October 1993 US$45,000,000 1J5$45,000,000 100% 100%  Retaling business
BEARLNE 45,000,000 £ 45000000 %7 TELE
—WAZFTANR

a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC.

w* wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of both reporting periods.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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38. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

(b)

Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has
material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling
interests:

38. XMW AR (&)

(b) BERERFEZEREZN-—BIZENE
DNEWFE
TRINTHEAERFERERAEE —
FIFEEM B A RS

Place of Proportion of “ownership
incorporation interest and voting Profit allocated to Accumulated
and principal rights held by non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary place of business non-controlling interests interests interests
FERERZBAER
WEAREHE RUBEREELELY FrisRERLH BT FERESNRF Rt ERRER
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZEF | CTRF | ZB4F | ZFNF | 2B F | T RF
RMB'000 RMB'000 | RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR | ARETL | ARBTR | ARKETT
(restated) (restated)
(E31) (&31)
Wingold Limited Hong Kong 40% 40% 103,745 111,196 988,726 884,980
REARRA BE

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's subsidiary that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.

BEBEEEAFEREANAREER
AWMEEMBZEINNT - L THHE
i EREEARRBEHEANDHE
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38. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (continued) 38. =EME A T E (&)

(b) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has (b) BEEEAFEZEREZN—EHEZ2ENES
material non-controlling interests (continued) RAENFE (8
Wingold Limited BEARAT
2017 2016
—E—+tF AN
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFTT
(Restated)
(&%)
Current assets REEE 176,666 109,604
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,552,426 2,360,167
Current liabilities mEasE 32,928 32,970
Non-current liabilities EmBBE 224,349 224,349
Equity attributable to owners of the Company N2 AR AFE(H#E R 1,483,089 1,327,472
Non-controlling interests JEFEARAE RS 988,726 884,980
Income U A 259,881 280,450
Expenses B 518 2,461
Profit and total comprehensive income R E T R 2 E W s 4258
for the year 259,363 277,989
Profit and total comprehensive income ARaEE ARG EEE
attributable to owners of the Company gt t-cl 155,618 166,793
Profit and total comprehensive income FEIE IR R PR AR T N 2 T W e
attributable to the non-controlling interests pake] 103,745 111,196
Profit and total comprehensive income FNRA R EW S AR
for the year 259,363 277,989
Net cash outflow from operating activities R TEARMIIR SR F5E (2,691) (4,262)
Net cash inflow from investing activities REESEENIBSRAFRE 29,802 44,147
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing BEEESTESNIRESRA
activities Omd) #5 3 (50,441)
Net cash inflow (outflow) BE&RACRL) F58 27,114 (10,556)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

39. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves

of the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

39. ALQAMBARR KRR

RIRERR - ARAFERRRER B

2017 2016
—Z=—+tF —ZE—RF
RMB’'000 RMB‘000
ARET T AREEFIT
(Restated)
(&%)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries N IEENGIL 7,248,134 7,258,262
7,248,134 7,258,262
Current assets TMENVEE
Other receivables Hih fE UL SR IR 232 309
Amounts due from a subsidiary (note a) fEUR — B A 75k E (Mt a) 18 6
Bank balances and cash RITHEF LIRS 3,752 9,879
4,002 10,194
Current liabilities mENAE
Other payables Hofh pE T F0E 11,107 8,862
Amounts due to a subsidiary (note a) T —FREIM B A mRE (Mt a) 23,201 23,201
34,308 32,063
Net current liabilities REIBEFE (30,306) (21,869)
Net assets BEFE 7,217,828 7,236,393
Capital and reserves BEARRfFEE
Share capital f& s 6,884 6,884
Reserves (note b) & (M5t b) 7,210,944 7,229,509
Total equity RESSAEER 7,217,828 7,236,393

MEFHEEEERAIE —T—tFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

39. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves

of the Company (continued)

39. ADRMBMRR KRR GHE (R

Movement of the reserves of the Company is as follows: RRRINFEEEENAT
Share Merger Retained
premium reserve profits Total
MR A 1E AoHREE R A #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBFT ARBFT
At 4 January 2016 RZZ—RF—HANA
(date of incorporation) (restated) (GRS R ER) (%) - - - -
Capitalisation issue BRI D 6,940,091 480 - 6,940,571
Profit and total comprehensive HREEA &
income for the period 2EREEEE - - 288,938 288,938
At 31 December 2016 (restated) RZZT—X
+ZA=+—R(&E%) 6,940,091 480 288,938 7,229,509
Loss and total comprehensive rEEBEREE
expense for the year asr L] - - (18,565) (18,565)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—LF
+=-—A=+—~H 6,940,091 480 270,373 7,210,944
Notes: Byt -
a. The amounts due from (to) a subsidiary were unsecured, non- a. U () —HMB AR FUELERKT - 28
interest bearing, and repayable on demand. RAREREEE -
b. The Company’s reserves available for distribution as at 31 b. RZZE—+F+ZA=+—H ARQAAHSIK

December 2017 consisted of share premium and retained profits
of RMB7,210,464,000 (2016: RMB7,229,029,000).
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Five-Year Group Financial Summary

IFEEUBRHE

Results ES
For the year ended 31 December HE+ZA=1+T—HItFE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—Z—tF TERE “ZT-h% ZEEE T =F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTTT

ARETT ARETT  ARETT

Turnover BER 1,222,785 1,132,287 1,123,961 1,078,628 1,007,816
Profit attributable to owners ViUNGIEY=PN 2
of the Company il 269,590 278,038 248,964 258,392 289,073
Earnings per share (RMB) BREFN (ARE)
— Basic —H K 0.168 0.173 0.155 0.161 0.180
Assets and Liabilities BEEREE
At 31 December Rn+=—A=+—H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—tF —T-RF —T-Af T —E-=E
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARBTFT ARBTFT ARBTT ARBTT
Total assets EEBE 13,051,300 12,344,395 11,720,331 10,656,139 9,964,553
Total liabilities BB 2,630,052 2,289,094 8,980,068 8,016,630 7,577,929
Net assets BERE 10,421,248 10,055,301 2,740,263 2,639,509 2,386,624
Non-controlling interests IR R RS 1,354,395 1,253,909 1,118,399 967,994 845,534
Net assets attributable to ANEEE AEL
owners of the Company BERHE 9,066,853 8,801,392 1,621,864 1,671,515 1,541,090
Net assets per share (RMB) BREEFE (ARE) 6.50 6.27 1.71 1.65 1.49
Net assets per share attributable AR A HA AL
to owners of the Company (RMB) SR EAEFE (ARE) 5.66 5.49 1.01 1.04 0.96
Number of shares issued BEITROEE 1,602,586,500 1,602,586,500 1,602,586,500 1,602,586,500 1,602,586,500

Note: number of shares for the purpose of basic earnings per share, net assets BE -
per share and net assets per share attributable to owners of the
Company has been taken into account the share issued pursuant to the
Reorganisation and the capitalisation issue of 1,602,586,440 ordinary
shares of HK$0.005 each of the Company at par value on 11 July 2016 as
stated in note 28(d) as if it had been effective on 1 January 2013.

REREARRT  FREEFERANRRESAELS
BREEFEMS 2 Y BREECEERESEMBETY
BEERR-_T—RNFLA+—BEMMEBTZAR
A &A% E{E0.005 74 JT #9 1,602,586,440 3B IR 51 & (R 1B
EAKIEE28(d) - IR T —=F—A—B4EK -

MEFHEEEERAIE —T—tFFR



Particulars of Major Properties

FEVRERFE

Property under development BRPYE
Attributable
Gross Site Nature of  interest to Category Stage of Expected Lot
floor area area property  the Group of lease completion  completion  number
&R
HEEER  GEEER WEME PEfb R HEER TERRER BRI Rith &
sq.m. sq.m.
ik Wk
Property under development, 348,337 50,154 Commercial 100% Medium Under 2019 2012-33
33Qiy, 312 Jiefang, [EES HH development
Daning Road, BREF

Jing'an District,
Shanghai, PRC

PR T HREAELE
3247 BEZERTIE
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LlfCSt le China Group Limited
I EF'EI’%aﬁFE/\?J

Lifestyle China Group Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
20/F., East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

HEPE S E A R
(RS SEMMIINERLAR)
B EE EFE5555%
EAIL2012

Telephone: (852) 2833 8338
Facsimile: (852) 2838 2030
Email: info@lifestylechina.com.hk
www.lifestylechina.com.hk
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